
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 27 SEPTEMBER 2012 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

Members: Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Sheriff & Deputy Wendy Mead (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers, Chief Commoner 
John Bird 
Ray Catt 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Michael Henderson-Begg 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Deputy Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Ian Seaton 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor Alderman David Wootton (Ex-Officio) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Gregory Moore 

tel. no.: 0207 332 3113 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served for Members in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 

INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 18 July 2012 (copy 

attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
 Report of the Town Clerk (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 12) 

 
5. REVENUE OUTTURN 2011/12 
 Joint report of the Town Clerk and Chamberlain (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 13 - 16) 

 
6. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 To receive a progress report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 17 - 24) 

 
7. WORKING WITH LONDONERS: GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations, as follows 

(copies attached):- 
 For Decision 
 a) Introductory Paper  (Pages 25 - 32) 

 

 b) Grant Recommendations and Assessments  (Pages 33 - 288) 
 

 



3 
 

 Annex  

 

Organisation 

 

Recommended 

Grant  

Page 

1 Tall Ships Youth Trust £68,000 37 

2 All Saints Appeal £50,000 47 

3 Battersea Arts Centre £50,000 57 

4 Essex Wildlife Trust £50,000 67 

5 Step By Step £120,000 77 

6 Bangladesh Youth Movement £48,000 87 

7 Environmental Vision - “envision” £102,000 97 

8 Fitzrovia Youth in Action £72,000 107 

9 Leaders in Community (LiC) £89,700 117 

10 Showroom Gallery Ltd £49,000 127 

11 Barons Court Project £55,000 137 

12 Off Centre £136,500 147 

13 St Peter’s Community and Advice Centre £47,700 157 

14 Mind in Tower Hamlets and Newham £124,000 167 

15 Froglife Trust £77,000 177 

16 Spitalfields City Farm £102,500 187 

17 Thames Estuary Partnership £86,000 197 

18 Open Age £59,000 208 

19 Sudbury Neighbour Centre (Middlesex) Ltd £47,900 218 

20 Koestler Trust  £77,650 228 

21 Whizz-Kids £60,000 238 

22 Kent Association for the Blind £73,000 248 

23 Primetimers £148,000 258 

24 Migrants Rights Network £99,000 268 

25 St John Ambulance £100,000 278 
 



4 
 

 c) Grants Recommended for Rejection  (Pages 289 - 300) 
 

 d) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  (Pages 301 - 304) 
 

8. GROWING LOCALITIES: GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 
 a) Introductory Paper  (Pages 305 - 312) 

 

 b) Grant Recommendations and Assessments  (Pages 313 - 352) 
 

  Annex  

 

Organisation 

 

Recommended 

Grant  

Page 

1 Tree Council £47,000 315 

2 Islington Play Association £45,200 324 

3 Hackney City Farm £50,000 334 

4 Poplar Housing & Regeneration 

Community Association 

£39,900 343 

 
 

 c) Grants Recommended for Rejection  (Pages 353 - 364) 
 

 d) Withdrawn or Lapsed Applications  (Pages 365 - 366) 
 
 

9. GRANTS APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 367 - 370) 

 
10. STRATEGIC INITIATIVE: LITERACY IN ISLINGTON 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 371 - 378) 

 
11. GET YOUNG PEOPLE WORKING: THE YOUTH OFFER 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 379 - 384) 

 
12. SOCIAL INVESTMENT FUND GOVERNANCE AND OPERATING 

ARRANGEMENTS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 385 - 392) 

 
13. COL STRATEGY FOR CITY PHILANTHROPY 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 393 - 398) 

 



5 
 

14. REPORTS ON MONITORING VISITS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 399 - 404) 

 
15. BUSINESS PLAN QUARTERLY UPDATE 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer (copy attached). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 405 - 408) 

 
16. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
18. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:- 
Item No       Exempt Paragraphs 
19          3 
 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
19. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 18 July 2012 (copy 

attached). 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 409 - 410) 

 
20. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
WEDNESDAY, 18 JULY 2012  

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE HELD 

AT GUILDHALL, EC2 ON WEDNESDAY, 18 JULY 2012 AT 11.30AM 
 

Present 

 
Also Present: 
Representatives from the following organisations, whom the Chairman 
welcomed to the meeting, were also present:- 
 

• Surrey Docks Farm (Annex 2) 

• Barnet Refugee Service (Annex 3) 

• New Horizon Youth Centre (Annex 4) 

• Ambitious about Autism (Annex 8) 

• Advocacy Plus (London) Ltd (Annex 10) 

• OCD Action (Item 7b) 

• BBC Children in Need (observer) 

• Anchor House (observer) 
 
 
 

Members: 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers, the Chief Commoner 
John Bird 
Ray Catt 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Michael Henderson-Begg 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Deputy Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew  
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Ian Seaton 
   
Officers:   
Greg Moore - Town Clerk’s Department 
Steve Reynolds - Chamberlains Department 
Jenna Rigley - Chamberlains Department 
Clare Thomas - Chief Grants Officer 
Sandra Davidson - The City Bridge Trust 
Jenny Field - The City Bridge Trust 
Stewart Goshawk - The City Bridge Trust 
Jemma Grieve Combes - The City Bridge Trust 
John Merivale - The City Bridge Trust 
Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 
Tim Wilson - The City Bridge Trust 
John Park - Public Relations Office 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absence were received from Vivienne Littlechild and Deputy and 
Sheriff Wendy Mead. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL 
INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA  
There were none. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 28 June 2012 were 
approved. 
 
MATTERS ARISING 
(1) Social Investment Fund (p6) – The Chief Grants Officer advised Members 
that a paper outlining the governance proposals for the new Social Investment 
Fund had now been considered at the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee 
Away Day. It had been agreed that a Board mirroring the Financial and 
Property Investment Boards, reporting to the Investment Committee, would be 
proposed which would meet at least three times a year. Assurances were given 
that the Chairman of The City Bridge Trust Committee would sit on this new 
Board so as to ensure connectivity. 

 
In response to a Member’s query concerning the administration costs of the 
Fund, the Chief Grants Officer advised that management costs would be 
worked out in conjunction with the Chamberlain. 
 

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS  
The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk identifying those items 
raised at meetings of the Committee that required further action by officers. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS  
The Committee received the regular progress report of the Chief Grants Officer 
which highlighted the various activities that were on-going or had recently 
concluded. 
 
The Chairman informed the Committee that an invitation had been received 
from the Sir John Soane Museum to attend a drinks reception and tour on the 
evening of 26 September, adding that a note would be circulated in due course 
with further information. 
 
A Member made reference to the recent “Celebrate the City” festival, 
highlighting some tensions which he felt might have existed between the 
organisers of this event and the organisers of the City of London Festival, and 
expressed his hope that closer collaboration could be had in future to ensure 
the two events better complemented each other. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

Page 2



6a. GRANT APPLICATIONS  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, introducing the 
grants programmes and stating that a total of thirty applications would be dealt 
with at the meeting, of which one was a strategic initiative, ten were 
recommended for grants and thirteen recommended for rejection, with two 
having been withdrawn. 
 
A Member noted that the number of applications recommended for rejection 
looked to have decreased recently and asked if there was anything in particular 
behind this. Officers advised that they were not aware of any specific cause, 
with it appearing to be merely coincidental, however it was of course pleasing 
to see fewer failed applications. 
  
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

6b. GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ASSESSMENTS  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer recommending 
grants to organisations. 
 
During consideration of the applications before the Committee, the following 
comments were made by Members of the Committee and relevant officers: 
 

• In respect of Annex 1 (Richmond and Kingston Accessible Transport), 
the Grants Officer confirmed that the organisation was yet to raise funds 
from other sources and had come to the Trust first before applying 
elsewhere; the Chairman echoed this point noting the condition attached 
to the grant, adding that it was hoped the Trust’s funding would 
encourage others to contribute. 

• With regard to Annex 8 (Ambitious about Autism), a Member noted the 
applicant had 164 full-time staff; the Grants Officer confirmed that this 
because of the high staff to pupil ratio often required owing to the 
particular needs associated with autistic children. 

 
RESOLVED: That the following grants be approved:- 
 
Annex  
Number 

Organisation 
(and Borough 
that Benefits) 

 

Grant Approved 

Category: Accessible London – Transport 
1. Richmond and Kingston 

Accessible Transport 
(Richmond and Kingston) 
 

£27,500 towards 50% of the purchase 
costs of one accessible minibus, 
subject to the balance being secured 
from other sources.  
 

Category: Bridging Communities 
2. 
 

Surrey Docks Farm  
(Southwark, Lewisham, 
Greenwich) 

£111,000 over three years (£47,000; 
£35,000; £29,000) for the Co-
ordinator’s salary and other costs of the 

Page 3



Joining Up project. 
 

3. Barnet Refugee Service 
(Barnet) 
 

£93,000 over 3 years (£30,000; 
£31,000; £32,000) towards the salary 
and associated running costs of a part-
time (21 hours) Volunteer Coordinator. 
 

Category: Improving Londoners’ Mental Health 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 
 
 

New Horizon Youth 
Centre 
(Several London 
boroughs) 
 
 
 
Upper Room (St 
Saviour’s with St Mary’s) 
(Hammersmith & Fulham) 
 
 
 
Haringey Women’s 
Forum 
(Haringey and 
surrounding boroughs) 
 
 

£135,000 over three years (£44,000; 
£45,000; £46,000) for the salary costs 
of a p/t (20hpw) Project Leader and two 
Lifeskills Workers (10hpw) plus 
associated costs for the Healthy Minds 
project. 
 
£34,100 over three years (£11,400; 
£11,200; £11,500) for one day a week 
of counselling support plus associated 
costs for Upper Room’s work with 
homeless clients. 
 
£102,000 over three years (£33,500; 
£34,000; £34,500) towards a part-time 
Volunteer Co-ordinator to run a 
befriending programme for women with 
mental health issues, especially those 
experiencing domestic violence, in 
order to enable them to live 
independently. 
 

Category: Positive Transitions to Independent Living 
7. 
 
 
 
 
8. 

New Choice for Youth 
(Newham) 
 
 
 
Ambitious about Autism 
(Several London 
boroughs) 
 
 

£74,250 over three years £24,500; 
£24,750; £25,000) towards a home 
maintenance skills training programme 
for young people leaving care. 
 
£117,000 over three years (£38,000; 
£39,000; £40,000) towards the salary 
of an Employment Specialist to help 
young people with severe autism into 
employment. 
 

Category: Strengthening the Third Sector 
9. 
 
 

Kairos in Soho 
(London-wide) 

£30,000 for a third year’s support for 
the LGBT volunteering project, subject 
to the receipt of a satisfactory 
monitoring report on the second year. 
 

10. Advocacy Plus (London) 
Limited 

£156,000 over three years (£58,000; 
£52,000; £46,000) towards the salary 

Page 4



(Several London 
boroughs) 
 

and associated running costs of a 
programme of work to enable advocacy 
projects improve the quality of their 
evaluation systems. 

 
6c. GRANTS RECOMMENDED FOR REJECTION  

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer recommending 
thirteen grant applications in the Working with Londoners programme be 
rejected for the reasons identified in the schedule attached to the report. 

 
RESOLVED: That the grant applications detailed in the schedule attached to 
the report be rejected. 
 

7a. WITHDRAWN AND LAPSED APPLICATIONS  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer detailing two 
applications that had withdrawn. 
 
It was noted that one of the organisations which had withdrawn an application 
had subsequently re-submitted a revised form, which had been approved at this 
meeting (Advocacy Plus Ltd – Annex 10). 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

7b. GRANTS APPROVED UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer advising Members 
of four grants, totalling £66,135, which had been approved under delegated 
authority since the last meeting of the Committee as follows: 
 

• Ivorian Advice and Support Group - £23,500 over two years 
(£11,500; £12,000) for entry level English language courses for BME (black 
and minority ethnic) students, conditional upon sight of satisfactory draft 
accounts for the year ending 31st March 2012. 

 

• OCD Action - £18,800 for a third and final year's contribution to the part-time 
Project Co-ordinator's salary plus operational costs of the London schools' 
work, subject to a satisfactory final report for the previous grant. 

 

• St Paul's Community Centre - £23,400 over three years (£7900; £7800; 
£7700) for a part-time Gardener and Caterpillar Club Co-ordinator. 

 

• CB Hounslow Football Club - £435 for an access audit. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

7c. REPORTS ON MONITORING VISITS  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer relative to two 
visits that had been undertaken.  
 
The Chairman remarked upon the number of visits which Members had already 
signed up for, commenting that it was very pleasing to see such involvement. 

Page 5



 
RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

8. THE LORD MAYOR'S APPEAL  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer proposing a 
strategic initiative to help make the annual Lord Mayor’s Appeal more efficient, 
effective and productive. 

 
Members expressed support for the proposal, commenting that an element of 
continuity was clearly desirable and would help increase the efficiency of the 
Appeal, leading to higher levels of fundraising as a consequence. However, 
Members were not fully convinced that the total level of funds requested for the 
initiative should come from the Trust; following discussion, it was felt that it 
would be more appropriate for the Trust to provide only the first year’s funding 
to cover the initial start-up costs, with Members expressing the view that the 
Appeal office should then be self-financing year on year.  

 
The nature of the Lord Mayor’s Appeal was also discussed, with Members 
stressing the need to ensure that the charities and areas chosen each year did 
not cut across or clash with work the Trust was undertaking. A Member also 
expressed concerns that the Development Director would also be expected to 
manage the database, opining that they would be better used if dedicated 
solely to fundraising activities. So as to eliminate concerns about potential 
overlaps and management of the Appeal, the Chief Grants Officer advised 
Members that the Appeal office would be overseen by an Advisory Steering 
Group and, whilst she would not normally serve on such bodies, she would in 
this instance be happy to do so given the anxieties expressed by Members. 
The Committee agreed that this would be an appropriate mechanism by which 
greater connectivity and oversight could be ensured, and supported the 
proposal. 

 
In view of the comments made, it was agreed that it would be appropriate for 
the Chief Grants Officer to liaise with the relevant Aldermen and officers 
involved and explain the Committee’s comments and make clear the way in 
which they expected the initiative to operate. Authority was subsequently 
delegated to the Town Clerk in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy 
Chairman to sign off the grant of £65,000 following the satisfactory conclusion 
of these discussions. 

 
RESOLVED: That authority be delegated to the Town Clerk in conjunction with 
the Chairman and Deputy Chairman to approve a grant of £65,000 towards the 
initial salary and running costs of the Development Director of the Lord Mayor’s 
Appeal and office support costs, following satisfactory discussions with the 
relevant Aldermen to clearly express the Committee’s expectations as to the 
self-financing nature of the Lord Mayor’s Appeal office in future years. 
 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

Page 6



10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
Strategy for City Philanthropy 
The Chief Grants Officer circulated a paper which had been considered at the 
Resource Allocation Sub-Committee Away Day concerning the promotion of the 
City as the global centre for philanthropy.  
 

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED: - That under Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:- 
 
Item No      Exempt Paragraphs 
12          3   
 

12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2012 were approved. 
 

13. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There was one urgent item. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.40pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Gregory Moore 
tel. no.: 0207 332 3113 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust Thursday 27 September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Outstanding Actions 

Public 

Report of: 

Town Clerk 

For Information  

 
Summary  

 
This report identifies those items raised at meetings of the City Bridge Trust 
Committee requiring further action by officers. The intention is to allow 
Members to track more easily progress made and record which outstanding 
actions have been dealt with. 
 
Those items which have arisen in the present financial year have been 
highlighted in the annex attached to the report; Members are asked to note the 
progress made to date. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Members are asked to note the contents of this report. 

 

 
 

Contact: 
Gregory Moore 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
020 7332 3113 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



The City Bridge Trust Committee – Outstanding Actions 
 

 

 

 
Item 

 

 
Action 

Officer 
responsible 

 
Progress to date 

1.  Surplus/deficit 
as % of turnover 

At your 28 June 2012 meeting, a Member suggested that the size of 
applicants’ surpluses and deficits be put into context in future reports by 
expressing them as a percentage of turnover (income); the Chamberlain 
agreed to provide this percentage to Grant Officers for inclusion. 

Chamberlain The Chamberlain has started to 
provide this information as 
agreed; however there may be 
some assessment reports in the 
papers for this meeting where 
the Chamberlain’s comments 
were received prior to this 
request. 

2.  Website Update A Member asked whether it would be possible to update the website to 
include some more recent activities. 

Chief Grants 
Officer 

The website has now been 
updated in accordance with the 
request. 

3. Feedback 
provided in 
respect of 
rejected 
applications 

At your 31 May 2012 meeting, Members requested that the reasons for 
rejection be intimated to the applicants at the time of rejection so as to 
further demonstrate the transparency of the Trust and assist 
organisations with future submissions. 
 

Chief Grants 
Officer 

Officers are currently looking at 
this issue and how to adapt the 
grants database appropriately; a 
further update will be provided in 
due course. 

4. Local Funding At your 26 April 2012 meeting, a Member expressed concern that 
organisations based in wealthier boroughs were not doing enough to 
raise funds locally, suggesting that applicants be asked to specifically 
state what they were doing to fundraise in their own areas. 

Chief Grants 
Officer 

The Chairman suggested that 
this was a matter for the 
quinquennial review, and will be 
considered at that time. 

5. Delegated 
Authority re Lord 
Mayor’s Appeal 

At your 18 July 2012 meeting, Members delegated authority to the Town 
Clerk in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman to sign of a 
grant of £65,000 to fund the Lord Mayor’s Appeal office, pending 
satisfactory discussions with the relevant Aldermen as to the 
expectations of the Committee as to how the funding would be used. 

Chief Grants 
Officer/Town 
Clerk 

A meeting with the relevant 
Aldermen, Members and 
Officers has been arranged for 
18 September, after which it is 
hoped the grant can be signed 
off. 

P
age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Revenue Outturn 2011/12 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

The Town Clerk 

Public 

 

For Information 

 
Summary  

 

1. This report compares the revenue outturn for the services overseen by your 
Committee in 2011/12 with the final agreed budget for the year. As 
indicated in the table below, net expenditure during the year was £18.937m, 
compared to the total agreed budget of £19.557m, representing an 
underspend of £620,000. 
 

 Summary Comparison of 2011/12 Revenue Outturn with Final Agreed 
Budget 

 Final Agreed 
Budget 
£000 

Revenue 
Outturn 
£000 

Variations 
Over/(under) 

£000 

Local Risk 
Grant 
Administration 

 
    

     897 

 
    

     834 

 
 

 (63) 
    
Central Risk 
Grants 

 
18,598 

 
18,050      

 
(548) 

 
Recharges 

   

Support Services       62       53   (9) 
    

Total 19,557 18,937 (620) 

 
2. In accordance with budget management arrangements for local risk 

resources, the Town Clerk proposed to carry forward £45,000 of the local 
risk underspend, to be used towards office improvements works, a 
feasibility study into future funding of a numeracy initiative with a media 
partner and research to inform the quinquennial review of priorities. The 
Town Clerk also proposed to carry forward the central risk underspend of 
£548,000, to be distributed as additional grants in 2012/13.  

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



3. These proposals have been agreed by the Chamberlain in consultation with 
the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Resource Allocation Sub 
Committee and the budgets have been increased accordingly. 

 

Recommendation 

 
4. It is recommended that this revenue outturn report for 2011/12 and the      

budgets carried forward to 2012/13 are noted. 
 

Main Report 

Revenue Outturn for 2011/12 

5. Net expenditure on services overseen by your Committee during 2011/12 
totalled £18.937m compared to a final agreed budget of £19.557m, a better 
than budget position of £620,000. 

 

Summary Comparison of 2011/12 Revenue Outturn with Final Agreed 
Budget 

 Final Agreed 
Budget 
£000 

Revenue 
Outturn 
£000 

Variations 
Over/(under) 

£000 

Local Risk 
Grant 
Administration 

 
    

     897 

 
    

     834 

 
 

 (63) 
    
Central Risk 
Grants 

 
18,598 

 
18,050      

 
(548) 

 
Recharges 

   

Support Services       62       53    (9) 
    

Total 19,557 18,937 (620) 

 
 
Reasons for Variations 

 

6. The Town Clerk’s local risk underspend of £63,000 primarily related to 
reduced salary costs arising from a staff vacancy and less than anticipated 
print costs due to Growing Localities brochures and promotional materials 
being published online. 
 

Page 14



7. The central risk underspend of £548,000 primarily arose due to the re-
phasing of the additional one-off provision to fund education and outreach 
projects.  

 

Carry Forward Requests to 2012/13 

 
8. Chief Officers can request local risk underspendings of up to 10% or 

£500,000 (whichever is the lesser) of the final agreed local risk budget to be 
carried forward, so long as the underspending is not fortuitous and the 
resources are required for a planned purpose. Such requests are considered 
by the Chamberlain in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy 
Chairman of the Resource Allocation Sub Committee. 

 
9. Overspendings are carried forward and recovered through reductions in the 

following year budget. 
 

10. The Town Clerk proposed to carry forward £45,000 of his local risk 
underspend to 2012/13 to be used towards office improvement works, a 
feasibility study into future funding of a numeracy initiative with a media 
partner and research to inform the quinquennial review of priorities. 

 
11. The Town Clerk also proposed to carry forward the central risk underspend 

of £548,000 to be distributed as additional grants in 2012/13. 
 
12. Both of these carry forward requests have been agreed by the Chamberlain 

in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Resource 
Allocation Sub Committee and the 2012/13 budgets have been increased 
accordingly. 

 
 
Contact Officers: 
 
Town Clerk’s Department: 
Jenny Field (Deputy Chief Grants Officer): Jenny.Field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 
Chamberlain’s Department: 
Steven Reynolds:  Steven.Reynolds@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Jenna Rigley: Jenna.Rigley@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012           

 

Subject: 

Progress Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

Summary  

 

This is a regular Progress Report by the Chief Grants Officer. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

Main Report 

1.0 Work in progress 

 

1.1 Included on your Agenda today are three reports that were originally 
prepared for the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee Awayday on 6th July 

2012.  The reports were presented formally to the Policy and Resources 
Committee at its meeting on 6th September 2012.  Due to the vagaries of 

the committee cycle, it was not possible to present them to your 

Committee before the meeting of Policy and Resources Committee. 

 

1.2 Two of these reports, “Get Young People Working – the Youth Offer” and 

“City of London Corporation’s Social Investment Fund, Governance and 

Operating Arrangements” are before you today for decision, having been 

approved by Policy and Resources Committee on 6th September 2012.  

The first of these will be considered by Finance Committee on 2nd 

October 2012 whilst the second will be considered by the Investment 

Committee Chairman and Deputy Chairman under delegated authority.  

Both will then be included on the Court of Common Council agenda for 

decision on 25th October 2012.    

 

1.3 The third report, “City of London Corporation Strategy for City 

Philanthropy” is before you today for information. 

 

2.0 Launch of the Beacon Awards for Philanthropy 

 

2.1 The 8th biennial Beacon Awards for Philanthropy were launched on 10th 

September 2012.  These honour individuals who have had a significant 

impact on a cause, or a philanthropist who will inspire or encourage 

future philanthropists to give. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



 

2.2 You may recall that you are supporting a new category of Beacon Award 

this year, the Beacon Award for City Philanthropy.  This category 

celebrates the achievements of an individual, or small group of 

individuals working collaboratively, whose philanthropy serves to inspire 

others in the financial, professional or business sectors as a model of 

engaged philanthropy. 

 

2.3 The Beacon Award for City Philanthropy is part of a cluster of activities 

that are being delivered as part of your “City Philanthropy – a wealth of 

opportunity” strategic initiative, the details of which can be found in the 

report, “City of London Corporation Strategy for City Philanthropy”, 

included in your papers today. 

 

2.4 The 2013 Beacon Awards Ceremony will be held at Mansion House on 6th 

February 2013. 

 

2.5 A press release from J P Morgan, the principal sponsor of the awards, 
was issued on 10th September 2012.  It welcomes the additional support 

being provided by the City Bridge Trust, as well as the Pears Foundation 

and includes a quote from the Lord Mayor. 

 
2.6 At the time of writing this report, coverage had been mainly through the 

websites of financial, investment and wealth management companies.  
However, the media agency Champollion, with which we have worked 

successfully in the past, is working hard to get wider coverage, 

particularly for City Bridge Trust and the City of London Corporation. 

 
3.0 Freelance Consultant 

 
3.1 One of your experienced freelance consultants, Joan Millbank MBE, has 

been helping the Trust with grants assessments.  She is working closely 

with Sandra Davidson, Grants Officer on the new “Growing Localities” 

programme, as well as undertaking some grants assessments for the 

“Working with Londoners” programme.  An update on the Growing 

Localities programme is provided in a separate report before you today.   

 

3.2 Ms Millbank is a Lewisham Councillor and therefore no applications with a 

Lewisham connection have or will be allocated to her to ensure there is 

no conflict of interest. 

 

4.0 Olympic Legacy Fund 

 

4.1 Several Members and staff attended an event on 23rd July to publicly 

 launch the study into the feasibility of establishing an endowed Olympic 

 Legacy Fund.  The occasion was addressed by Anita de Franz, member of 

 the International Olympic Committee and President of the LA84 

 Foundation - the original model for the idea of setting up a UK fund.  The 

Page 18



 meeting gave the steering group of which your officer, Stewart Goshawk, 

 is a member, a very strong endorsement of the proposals.   

 

4.2 Buoyed by the success of the Olympic and Paralympic Games and the  

 overwhelming desire to see a lasting legacy, the steering group is 

 continuing its efforts to get backing for the project in places of authority 

 and influence. 

 

5.0 Olympic and Paralympic Volunteering 

 

5.1 Five members of the staff team: Michael Shona, Sandra Davidson, 

 Martin Hall, Jenny Field and Cheryl Belmont volunteered as City 

 Corporation Street Guides during various Olympic and Paralympic events 

 that took place in and around the Square Mile.  Another of your officers, 

 Stewart Goshawk, was a volunteer performer and athletes’ marshal in 

 the Olympic Opening and Closing Ceremonies. 

 

6.0 Media Trust Film Screening 
 

6.1 On 3rd September, several members and officers attended an event at 

 the Barbican, held in partnership with the Media Trust, which had made 

 short films for ten of your grant recipient organisations, under the 
 banner “Telling your Stories”.   

 
6.2 The event, attended by representatives of the groups together with the 

 volunteer professional film-makers, gave the films their inaugural 

 screening.  The quality was very high and each film gave a real insight 

 into the work of the featured charity.  In his opening remarks, the 
 Chairman noted that a picture paints a thousand words – these films 

 demonstrated that so clearly.   
 

6.3 Each group is provided with copies of their film to use for promotional 

 purposes.  All the films will also be available on the CBT web site as case 
 studies of the breadth of work that is funded. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3711 
Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 12/09/12  

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  

 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 4 July to 11 September 2012 

 
Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location 
/Borough 

Summary Comments 
 

09/07/12 Media Trust Meeting Chief Grants Officer; 
Stewart Goshawk, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

ITN,  
Gray’s Inn Rd,  
London WC1 

CBT is funding a second year of Media 
Trust’s London 360 Project; aiming to 
train young people from across London 
in community journalism, delivering 
opportunities for community stories to 
be heard and CBT grant recipients to 
tell their stories.  This meeting, hosted 
by Jon Snow, gave an update on the 
progress of London 360 and introduced 
us to Media Trust’s new group of 
community reporters. 

10/07/12 City of London 
Corporation 

Breakfast 
Round Table 

Lord Mayor; Chair of 
Policy & Resources 
Committee; 
Alderman Gifford; 
Chief Grants Officer; 
Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Mansion House The Lord Mayor hosted, and the Policy 
Chairman led, a discussion of ways 
private banks and wealth advisors 
might support the development of the 
social investment market and engage 
their clients in this area. 16 banks 
attended along with representatives 
from Big Society Capital and Social 
Finance. 

11/07/12 London Funders Board meeting Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Euston Regular meeting of the Executive 
Board. 

12/07/12 Wembley 
National Stadium 
Trust 

Trustees 
Meeting 

Chief Grants Officer; 
Stewart Goshawk, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall The trustees met to continue to agree 
elements of their grant making strategy 
and procedures. 

P
age 21



13/07/12 Royal 
Horticultural 
Society 

Opening of new 
School Garden 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Christ Church 
Primary School, 
Battersea 

The opening of this new school garden 
was enabled through your current 
funding of the London Regional Advisor 
whose principal function is to deliver 
this type of project. 

23/07/12 London Funders Launch event Stewart Goshawk, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; Ciaran 
Rafferty, Principal 
Grants Officer; Anita 
Williams, Grants 
Administrator 

CCLA offices, 
Queen Victoria 
St EC4 

An event to launch the London Funder’s 
campaign for an Olympics legacy fund - 
“Legacy 2013”. See Chief Grants 
Officer’s report for more detail. 

23/07/12 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Meeting Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Woburn Place, 
Euston 

A meeting for funders interested in the 
Inspiring Impact programme, a new 
initiative aimed at improving standards 
of impact assessment in the voluntary 
sector 

25/07/12 DHL Foundation 
Board 

Trustees 
Meeting 

Chief Grants Officer Juxon House, 
St Paul’s 
Churchyard, 
London EC4 

The Chief Grants Officer gave a 
presentation on Social Investment to 
the trustees of DHL Foundation. 

25/07/12 Charities Aid 
Foundation 

Meeting Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Holborn A meeting of charities and Foundations 
to discuss giving policy 

03/09/12 Wembley 
National Stadium 
Trust  

Trustees 
meeting 

Stewart Goshawk, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Guildhall The trustees met to confirm the details 
of their first grants programme. 

03/09/12 Media Trust Film screening The Chairman, 
Members and staff 

Barbican An event to give the inaugural 
screening of short films made for some 
of your grant recipients.  See Chief 

Grants Officer’s report for more detail. 

P
age 22



 

THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  

 
General Events and Receptions  

Attended 4 July to 11 September 2012 

 
Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 

Representative 
Location 
/Borough 

Summary Comments 
  

10/07/12 Islington Giving Charity Auction Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer 

Upper Street, 
London N1 

A fundraising event in support of 
Islington Giving, with guest speaker 
Jack Morris OBE, Chair of the Morris 
Charitable Trust and Islington Giving 
Appeal Committee. 

12/07/12 City of London 
Corporation 

Epping Forest 
Ladies’ Day 

Chief Grants Officer Epping Forest An annual event to celebrate the 
Epping Forest and Commons 
Committee’s achievements and thank 
supporters.  On this occasion, the new 
Visitor Centre was opened by the 
Ranger, His Royal Highness The Duke 
of Gloucester KG GCVO, in honour of 
the Past Chairman, Mrs Barbara 
Newma CBE. 

12/07/12 Shelter Reception Chief Grants Officer Gray’s Inn, 
London WC1 

Summer Reception to thank 
supporters and to present outline of 
2012-2015 strategy. 

20/07/12 Brent Council for 
Voluntary 
Services 

Meeting Tim Wilson, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Brent Town 
Hall 

The Trust was invited by Brent’s new 
infrastructure organisations to present 
to charities working in the borough. 
 

22/07/12 Serious Events Concert Stewart Goshawk, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

London 
Pleasure 
Gardens, 
Docklands 

This event was part of the BT River of 
Music celebration as part of the 
Cultural Olympiad. 

P
age 23



24/07/12 CommUNITY 
Barnet 

Funders’ fair Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

North 
Finchley N12 

Your Grants Officer gave a 
presentation on CBT funding priorities 
and application guidance at a 
fundraising event for the Barnet 
voluntary sector. 

04/09/12 Rivers of the 
World Exhibition 

Exhibition The Chairman Oxo Tower The Chairman attended a Private View 
of this beautiful exhibition of art work 
done by school children.  Simon 
Hughes MP was the host and the 
Chairman met the Director of the 
Diamond Jubilee Regatta.  The 
Chairman especially enjoyed items on 
the River Foyle in Northern Ireland, 
which brought back memories of when 
he served on the Hon. The Irish 
Society. 

04/09/12 Voice4Change 
England 

Reception Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

House of 
Commons 

Annual organisational reception, this 
year focused on how to deliver 
transformative public services that 
deliver social value to diverse 
communities. 

11/09/12 Providence Row Luncheon The Chairman Mansion 
House 

The Lady Mayoress kindly hosted a 
luncheon in the private quarters of 
Mansion House for supporters of 
Providence Row, of which CBT is one.  
The Chairman met the Duke of 
Norfolk, their patron. 

 

P
age 24



Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Grant Recommendations - Introductory Paper 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Ward (if appropriate): N/A 

 

Summary  

 

This report deals with recommendations relating to applications 

received on your current grants programmes.  

A total of 91 applications will be dealt with at this meeting.  Of 
these, one is a strategic initiative, 29 are recommended for a 

grant, 39 are recommended for rejection, and nine have been 

withdrawn.  13 grants are also noted as having been awarded 
under delegated authority.  The total recommended sum is 

£2,459,350. 

Recommendations 

That you: 

a)  note the contents of the report 

b)  consider the individual grant recommendations in relation to 
the applications set out in the summary schedules and other 

papers 

Main Report  

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 This paper summarises the action taken on grant applications 

received, and tracks the spend on your grant making at each 

Committee meeting.  This month sees the first recommendations 

brought to your Committee on your new Growing Localities 

programme.  Therefore, in the report, sections 2 to 3 deal with 
Working with Londoners applications, Strategic Initiatives and Eco-

audits and section 4 deals separately with Growing Localities 

applications.  Further sections provide summary schedules of all 

current grants programmes.  
  
1.2 Your policy guidance is presented in a loose-leaf folder entitled 

“Members’ Handbook”.  It includes the priorities and exclusions that 

Agenda Item 7a

Page 25



were ratified for the Trust by the Court of Common Council, in April 

2008, following your Quinquennial Review.  It is also available on 

the intranet.  This month’s Committee papers also include a report 

summarising the criteria for your Growing Localities programme. 

 

2.0 Working with Londoners  
 

2.1 Two summary schedules of the 25 grant recommendations are 

provided at the end of this report.  The first of the summary 

schedules lists the recommended applications by annexe number; 

the second is in alphabetical order. 

 

2.2 In the period 1st October – 31st December 2011, 123 applications 

were received.  Of these two remain pending. 

 

Table 1: Applications received 1st Oct – 31st Dec 2011  

 
  Committee Date 

Nov 

11 

Jan 

12 

Feb 

12 

Mar 

12 

Apr 

12 

May 

12 

Jun 

12 

Jul 

12 

Sep 

12 

Total 

Strat 

Initiatives 

1         1 

Grants / 

Recs 

1 9 16 18 7 3 1   55 

Rejs/Recs  25 9 6 4   1  45 

Withdrawn  7 6 4  2    19 

Lapsed     1     1 

Pending N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2 2 

TOTAL 2 41 31 28 12 5 1 1 2 123 

 

2.3 In the period 1st January to 31st March 2012, 125 applications were 
received.  Of these, seven are recommended for a grant today, four 

are recommended for rejection, two are recommended for grants 

under delegated authority and one has been withdrawn, leaving 

three pending. 

 

  Table 2: Applications received 1st Jan – 31st March 2012 

 
  Committee Date 

  

Feb 

12 

Mar 

12 

Apr 

12 

May 

12 

Jun 

12 

Jul 

12 

Sep 

12 

Total 

Strat Initiatives 1             1 

Grants / Recs  1 3 9 11 10 6 7 47 

Delegated Gr       3   2 2 7 

Rejs/Recs   16 20 9 9   4 58 

Withdrawn    2 2 2   1 1 8 

Lapsed         1     1 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 3 3 

TOTAL  2 21 31 25 20 9 17 125 

Page 26



2.4 In the period 1st April to 30th June 2012, 131 applications were 

received.  Of these, 17 are recommended for a grant today, nine 

are recommended for a grant under delegated authority, 21 are 

recommended for rejection, and 5 have been withdrawn, leaving 32 

pending. 

 

 Table 3: Applications received 1st April 2012 – 30th June 2012 

   
  Committee Date 

  

Apr 

12 

May 

12 

Jun 

12 

July 

12 

Sep 

12 

Total 

Strategic 

Initiatives 

6 1       7 

Grants / Recs      1 4 17 22 

Delegated Gr       2 9 11 

Rejs/Recs   11 9 12 21 53 

Withdrawn        1 5 6 

Lapsed           0 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A 32 32 

TOTAL  6 12 10 19 84 131 

 
2.5 In the period since 1st July 2012, 78 applications were received.  Of 

these, one is recommended for a grant today, two are 
recommended for a grant under delegated authority, seven are 

recommended for rejection, two have been withdrawn, and one is a 

Strategic Initiative, leaving 64 pending. 

 
 Table 4: Applications received since 1st July 2012 

 

  

Committee Date 

Jul 

12 

Sep 

12 

Total 

Strategic Initiatives 1 1 2 

Grants / Recs    1 1 

Delegated Gr   2 2 

Rejs/Recs   7 7 

Withdrawn    2 2 

Lapsed     0 

Pending    64 64 

TOTAL  1 77 78 

 

 

3.0 Strategic Initiatives 

 

3.1 There is one new Strategic Initiative to be considered today.  For 

your information, table 5 also shows those already agreed at earlier 

meetings.  

 

Page 27



Table 5: Strategic Initiatives 2012/13  

 
Strategic Initiatives Committee 

date 

 £  

Already agreed in advance for this financial year:     

Quniquennial Review Horizon Scanning 16/02/2012 50,000 

Social Investment Specialist Role 15/03/2012 50,000 

(The above were entered in the budget record in April 

2012)     

Learning & Sharing Strategy 26/04/2012 124,000 

Reading Agency 26/04/2012 50,000 

Beacon Award 26/04/2012 32,500 

Greening Third Sector 26/04/2012 75,000 

Lord Mayor's Show 31/05/2012 24,110 

The Lord Mayor’s Appeal (pending conditions) 18/07/2012 65,000 

For this meeting:     

Literary initiative in Islington 27/09/2012 72,300 

  Total 542,910 

      

Sum available as 5% annual Working with Londoners 

grants budget 

  747,500 

Balance remaining   204,590 

 

3.2 Greening the Third Sector: At your April meeting you agreed an 

allocation of £75,000 for 2012-13 towards the Eco-Audit initiative 
which is published in your Working with Londoners guidelines.  

Table 6 shows this year’s commitments to date. 

 

Table 6: Eco-Audits agreed 2012-13  
 
Organisation Committee 

date 

Days 

agreed 

£ agreed 

Penrose 31/05/12 9.0 3,375 

Voluntary Action Islington additional half day 

required 18/07/12 0.5 188 

HAVCO 27/09/12 6.0 2,250 

Total:     5,813 

Budget allowed      75,000 

Balance remaining     69,188 

 

4.0 Growing Localities 

 

4.1 In October 2011, you approved the priorities for your new 

programme, ‘Growing Localities’, a one-off grants programme in 

celebration of HM The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee in 2012.  Policy and 

Resources Committee agreed to allocate an additional £2,000,000 

against your 2012/13 grants budget for this programme.  The 

programme was launched in July 2012.      

 

Page 28



4.2 A summary schedule of the 4 grant recommendations is provided in 

your papers which lists the recommended applications by annexe 

number. 

 

4.3 In the period since 1st July 2012 24 applications were received.  Of 

these, four are recommended for a grant today, seven are 

recommended for rejection, and one has been withdrawn, leaving 

12 pending. 

 

Table 7: Growing Localities applications received since 1st 

July 2012 

 

  

Committee Date 

Sep 12 Total 

Grants / Recs  4 4 

Rejs/Recs 7 7 

Withdrawn  1 1 

Lapsed   0 

Pending  12 12 

TOTAL  24 24 

 

 

5.0 Summary 

 
5.1 From Table 8 you will see that a total of 91 applications will be dealt 

with at this meeting. The total recommended sum is £2,459,350. 
 

Table 8: Applications at this meeting – Summary  

 
Strategic Initiatives 1 

Working with Londoners grants recommended 25 

Working with Londoners grants delegated authority 13 

Working with Londoners grants rejections recommended 32 

Working with Londoners grants withdrawn 8 

Working with Londoners grants lapsed 0 

Growing Localities grants recommended 4 

Growing Localities grants rejections recommended 7 

Growing Localities grants withdrawn 1 

Growing Localities grants lapsed 0 

    

Total applications 91 

    

Working with Londoners grants recommended total £2,204,950 

Working with Londoners strategic initiatives £72,300 

Growing Localities grants recommended total £182,100 

    

Total recommendations £2,459,350 

 

Page 29



5.2 From Table 9 you will see the relative distribution of grants this 

financial year, across your programme areas. 

  

Table 9: Grants in 2012-13 – by Programme  

 
Programme Area Year to 

date 

This 

meeting 

Total 

Working with 

Londoners £ £ £ 

Accessible London 399,135 418,410 817,545 

Bridging Communities 1,012,700 403,440 1,416,140 

Improving Mental Health 778,700 373,200 1,151,900 

London's Environment 291,520 277,450 568,970 

Older Londoners 259,800 154,800 414,600 

Positive Transitions 348,250 210,650 558,900 

Strengthening Third 

Sector 915,000 247,000 1,162,000 

Exceptional Grants 0 120,000 120,000 

Strategic Initiatives 470,610 72,300 542,910 

Additional Grants 27,800 0 27,800 

Growing Localities     0 

Growing and Greening 0 182,100 182,100 

Horticultural Work 

Training 0 0 0 

      0 

Total £4,503,515 £2,459,350 £6,962,865 

 

 
6.0 Write-Backs & Revocations 

 

6.1 Table 10 provides a list of Working with Londoners write-backs and 
revocations approved under delegated authority during the year 

since 1st April 2012, for your information.  Detail on those processed 
since your last meeting is provided elsewhere in your papers. 

 

Table 10: Working with Londoners Write-backs and 

Revocations 2012/13  

 
  £ 

Haringey Carers' Centre 15,000  

St Michael & All Angels 5,910  

Three Wings Trust 21,000  

Since your last meeting:   

Camden BME Alliance 30,000 

Tony Blair Faith Foundation 8,500 

Total: £80,410 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 30



7.0 Summary of Spend 2012-13 

 

7.1 Table 11 (at the end of this paper) summarises the original budgets 

for 2012-13, including your Working with Londoners and Growing 

Localities programmes, and the balance of the additional budget 

approved by Policy & Resources Committee in July 2010. 

 

7.2 This table also shows the implications of write-backs of £80,410, 

Strategic Initiatives of £542,910 (including those agreed prior to 

today’s meeting to be charged against this financial year), and 

grant recommendations of £2,204,950 under Working with 

Londoners and £182,100 under Growing Localities made today. 

 

7.3 A sum of £8,277,445 remains unspent on your Working with 

Londoners grants budget for 2012/13.  This is deemed sufficient for 

your usual volume of grant-making over the remaining meetings for 

this financial year. 
 

Recommendations: 
 

That you 

 

a)  note the contents of the report, 

 
b)  consider the individual grant recommendations in relation to the 

applications set out in the summary schedules and other papers. 
 

 

Contact: 

Jemma Grieve Combes, Grants Officer - 020 7332 3174  
jemma.grievecombes@cityoflondon.gov.uk     
report written: 12/09/2012 

Page 31



Table 11: Grants to date 2012/13  

  Working with Londoners Growing Localities Additional Budget P&R 

  Approved 

/Rec Sum 

Budget 

Remaining 

Approved Budget Approved 

/Rec Sum 

Budget 

Remaining 

  £ £     £   

Original Grants Budget for 2012/13   14,950,000    2,000,000   

  

Additional Budget approved P&R July 

2010 Balance c/f from 2011/12 

  

      

548,000 

              

Write-Backs & Revocations   80,410          

see Table 10             

Total Budgets Available   15,030,410    2,000,000  0  548,000  

              

Strategic Initiatives 542,910  14,487,500          

see Table 5             

              

Applications at Committee             

April 2012 1,100,220  13,387,280    2,000,000    548,000 

May 2012 1,044,400  12,342,880    2,000,000  27,800 520,200 

June 2012 914,500  11,428,380    2,000,000    520,200 

July 2012 945,985  10,482,395    2,000,000    520,200 

September 2012 2,204,950  8,277,445  182,100 1,817,900    520,200 

October 2012   8,277,445   1,817,900    520,200 

November 2012   8,277,445   1,817,900    520,200 

January 2013   8,277,445   1,817,900    520,200 

February 2013   8,277,445   1,817,900    520,200 

March 2013   8,277,445   1,817,900    520,200 

              

Sub-Total for 2012/13 6,752,965    182,100    27,800    

              

Total Remaining for 2012/13   8,277,445    1,817,900    520,200  

 

P
age 32



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 27 September 2012 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations - Working With Londoners 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

 01.  Accessible London 

 1 11169 Tall Ships Youth Trust £68,000 £68,000  37 

 2 11127 All Saints Appeal £130,000 £50,000  47 

 3 11219 Battersea Arts Centre £64,400 £50,000  57 

 4 11202 Essex Wildlife Trust £56,178 £50,000  67 

 5 11246 Step by Step £120,000 £120,000  77 

 Total 01.  Accessible London £438,578 £338,000 

 

 02.  Bridging Communities 

 6 11033 Bangladesh Youth £135,360 £48,000  87 

 Movement (BYM) 

 7 11144 Environmental Vision - £103,986 £102,000  97 

 "envision" 

 8 11147 Fitzrovia Youth in £74,175 £72,000 107 

 Action 

 9 11244 Leaders in Community £89,700 £89,700 117 

 (LiC) 

 10 11198 Showroom Gallery Ltd £49,357 £49,000 127 

 Total 02.  Bridging Communities £452,578 £360,700 

 

 03.  Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

 11 11114 Barons Court Project £55,187 £55,000 137 

 12 11105 Off Centre £186,600 £136,500 147 

 13 11298 St Peter's Community £47,775 £47,700 157 
 and Advice Centre 

 14 11139 Mind in Tower Hamlets £124,391 £124,000 167 

 and Newham 

 Total 03.  Improving Londoners' Mental £413,953 £363,200 

            Health 

 

 04.  London's Environment 

 15 11216 Froglife Trust £88,131 £77,000 177 

 16 11173 Spitalfields City Farm £110,379 £102,500 187 

Agenda Item 7b

Page 33



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 27 September 2012 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations - Working With Londoners 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

 17 11170 Thames Estuary £24,900 £86,000 197 

 Partnership 

 Total 04.  London's Environment £223,410 £265,500 

 

 05.  Older Londoners 

 18 11176 Open Age £59,333 £59,000 208 

 19 11110 Sudbury £47,890 £47,900 218 

 Neighbourhood Centre 

 (Middlesex) Limited 

 Total 05.  Older Londoners £107,223 £106,900 

 

 06.  Positive Transitions to Independent Living 

 20 11063 Koestler Trust £89,439 £77,650 228 

 21 11260 Whizz-Kidz £65,752 £60,000 238 

 22 11210 Kent Association for £74,576 £73,000 248 
 the Blind 

 Total 06.  Positive Transitions to £229,767 £210,650 

            Independent Living 

 

 07.  Strengthening the Third Sector 

 23 11255 Primetimers £149,287 £148,000 258 

 24 11206 Migrants Rights £99,728 £99,000 268 

 Network 

 Total 07.  Strengthening the Third Sector £249,015 £247,000 

 

 11.  Exceptional Grants 

 25 11259 St John Ambulance £117,740 £100,000 278 

 Total 11.  Exceptional Grants £117,740 £100,000 

 

 Grand Totals £2,232,264 £1,991,950 

Page 34



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 27 September 2012 
 Summary of Grant Recommendations - Working With Londoners 

 Annex Ref. 

 No. No. Organisation Requested Recommended 

 2 11127 All Saints Appeal £130,000 £50,000 

 6 11033 Bangladesh Youth Movement £135,360 £48,000 

 (BYM) 

 11 11114 Barons Court Project £55,187 £55,000 

 3 11219 Battersea Arts Centre £64,400 £50,000 

 7 11144 Environmental Vision - £103,986 £102,000 

 "envision" 

 4 11202 Essex Wildlife Trust £56,178 £50,000 

 8 11147 Fitzrovia Youth in Action £74,175 £72,000 

 15 11216 Froglife Trust £88,131 £77,000 

 22 11210 Kent Association for the Blind £74,576 £73,000 

 20 11063 Koestler Trust £89,439 £77,650 

 9 11244 Leaders in Community (LiC) £89,700 £89,700 

 24 11206 Migrants Rights Network £99,728 £99,000 

 14 11139 Mind in Tower Hamlets and £124,391 £124,000 

 Newham 

 12 11105 Off Centre £186,600 £136,500 

 18 11176 Open Age £59,333 £59,000 

 23 11255 Primetimers £149,287 £148,000 

 10 11198 Showroom Gallery Ltd £49,357 £49,000 

 16 11173 Spitalfields City Farm £110,379 £102,500 

 25 11259 St John Ambulance £117,740 £100,000 

 13 11298 St Peter's Community and £47,775 £47,700 

 Advice Centre 

 5 11246 Step by Step £120,000 £120,000 

Page 35



 Annex Ref. 

 No. No. Organisation Requested Recommended 

 19 11110 Sudbury Neighbourhood Centre £47,890 £47,900 

 (Middlesex) Limited 

 1 11169 Tall Ships Youth Trust £68,000 £68,000 

 17 11170 Thames Estuary Partnership £24,900 £86,000 

 21 11260 Whizz-Kidz £65,752 £60,000 

 Grand Totals £2,232,264 £1,991,950 

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Working with Londoners - Recommended for 

Rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

 
Summary  

 
This report and the accompanying schedule outlines 32 grant 

applications to your Working with Londoners programme that, 

for the reason(s) identified, are recommended for rejection. 
 

Recommendation 

 

That the grant applications detailed in the accompanying 
schedule be rejected. 

 

Main Report 

1. There are a total of 32 applications on your Working with 

Londoners programme recommended for rejection at this 

meeting. They are listed alphabetically within categories in 

the accompanying schedule. In each case the “purpose” 

that is used to describe the application is that provided by 

the applicant organisation. All the recommendations are 

based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance. 
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in 

the Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member 

wishes to query any of the recommendations, this can 

either be done at the meeting, in which case the decision 

may be deferred while full details are provided to the 

Member concerned, or by contacting the Trust office in 

advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 

provided for the Member concerned prior to or at the 

meeting.  

 
Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 

020 7332 3712   stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 11/09/12 

Agenda Item 7c

Page 289



Page 290

This page is intentionally left blank



01.  Accessible London

!!"#$

%&'()*+,-.+)
/01(0&

%213+,,+3*42-45-&4)(
67((,87+*)9+88(11*:,(-,*531-*234-37(
)(;(<(,4'(;-%./-=42;42-:0*,;*2>
+3-=+&:(37-?4+;@

%3-*1-243-A40)-'4,*8A-34-502;-37(->(2()+,
)(50):*17&(23-84131-45-37(-,+)>(
2+3*42+,-&01(0&1-+2;->+,,()*(1@

B"$$C$$$ DE

D40376+)F

!!"GH

D7+F(1'(+)(-E,4:(
I)013

J(,*<()*2>-+-8494);*2+3(;-K88(11
')4<*1*42-54)-+0;*(28(1-+2;
'()54)&()1-*2-40)-2(6-*2;44)
L+84:(+2-37(+3)(-+2;-K88(11
1*>2+>(-+8)411-37(-E,4:(-1*3(

I7(-+'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-*1-+-37(+3)(
45-2+3*42+,-+2;-*23()2+3*42+,-)(2462@
I7(-)(M0(13-&+F(1-24-&(23*42-45-+2A
1'(8*5*8-=42;42-:(2(5*3-+2;-37(
+'',*8+3*42-8+2243-37()(54)(-:(
10''4)3(;@

B#!CN$$ DE

D40376+)F

Total 01.  Accessible London (2 items) £251,300

02.  Bridging Communities

!!"OG

KP*1-Q;08+3*42+,
I)013

R)4<*;*2>-DF*,,1-54)-=*5(-840)1(1-54)
*&&*>)+23-64&(2-67*87-6*,,-+,14
(2840)+>(-148*+,-*23(>)+3*42-S
84&&02*3A-847(1*42C-KP*1-6*,,
*&')4<(-,*5(-13+2;+);1-45
;*1+;<+23+>(;-5+&*,*(1@

I7(-:0;>(3-54)-37(-')4T(83-*1-<()A-7(+<A
42-10''4)3-+2;-42984131-)+37()-37+2
+830+,-;(,*<()A@-?(30)21-34-U7+)*3A
U4&&*11*42-+)(-+,14-'()(2*+,,A-,+3(@

B"!C"NO DE

%1,*2>342

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<=9>$?!=@8;$9!AB9
9C"$<+-D$?'+4("$9'0,-$<.33+--""$E$FG$B"1-"3H"'$FIJF

B033)'D$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$E$K.'L+*($M+-C$N.*4.*"',

P
age 291



!!"#N

V+)F*2>-+2;
J+>(27+&-W+*37
W4)0&

I7(-1+,+)A-45-+-'+)393*&(-X!Y
740)1-'()-6((FZ-W+*37
U4&&02*3*(1-[03)(+87-.4)F()
'413-34-13)(2>37(2-8423+83-6*37
+2;-:0*,;-1013+*2+:,(-:)*;>(1
:(36((2-37(-:4)40>7\1-;*<()1(
5+*37]:(,*(5-84&&02*3*(1@

I7(-+'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-7+1-24-,(>+,
(23*3A-+2;-37(-(&',4A&(23-45-13+55-*2
1087-8*)80&13+28(-*1-243->44;-')+83*8(@

B"HCY$$ DE

V+)F*2>-S
J+>(27+&

!!"YG

U42M0()4)1-U*3A
U70)87-=*&*3(;

I4-84<()-37(-8413-45-)(23*2>-455*8(
')(&*1(1@

K-2(6-4)>+2*1+3*42-1((F*2>-+
8423)*:03*42-346+);1->(2()+,-)022*2>
84131C-67*87-5+,,1-4031*;(-A40)-')*4)*3*(1@

B!#C$$$ DE

U)4A;42

!!"^H

WKDI-=42;42-_`

WKDI-')4'41(-34-:)*;>(
84&&02*3*(1-:A-)022*2>-+-F(('5*3
8,+11-*2-37(-84&&02*3AC-(&'46()
84&&02*3*(1-:A-5+8*,*3+3*2>-+
84&&02*3A-54)0&-+2;-Q23)A-,(<(,
QD[=-840)1(@

I7*1-4)>+2*1+3*42-)('4)31-37+3-*3-7+1-,413
+,,-*31-502;*2>-+2;-7+1-')4<*;(;-24
;(3+*,1-45-746-*3-(P'(831-34-&((3-*31
)022*2>-84131C-(13*&+3(;-+3-B!Y$C$$$-*2
"$!"]!N@

B!GCO^$ DE

=+&:(37

!!"Y$

a(+,37*()-=*5(-H-b40

K-2(6-+2;-*224<+3*<(-')4T(83C-14
37+3-6(-8+2-1(3-0'-+2;-)02
84&&02*3A-:+1(;-1(11*421-6*37*2
37(-;(')*<(;-+)(+1-45-37(
84&&02*3A@

K-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42-1((F*2>-+-,+)>(
>)+23-54)-<()A->(2()+,-84&&02*3A
;(<(,4'&(23-64)FC-67*87-;4(1-243
&((3-A40)-')4>)+&&(-')*4)*3*(1@

B"$"C"NH DE

V)(23

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 292



!!"#Y

a4021,46-?+8(-+2;
QM0+,*3*(1-U4028*,

I4-(13+:,*17-+-'+)32()17*'-6*37
(M0+,*3A->)40'1-*2-a4021,46@-.(
+*&-34-:0*,;-8+'+8*3A-*2-37(
<4,023+)A-1(834)-+2;-(&'46()
*2;*<*;0+,1-6*37-37(*)-)*>73-02;()
QM0+,*3A\1-K83-"$!$

K-)(,+3*<(,A-,+)>(-)(M0(13C-67*87-;4(1
243-&+F(-1055*8*(23,A-8,(+)-746-37(
')4'41(;-64)F-&((31-37(-I)013\1
')*4)*3*(1@

B!"GCG#N I.

a4021,46

!!"NO

/+F*2>
U4&&02*3*(1-.4)F
S-E)46

I4-)(M0(13-502;*2>-34-(2+:,(-01-34
8423*20(-34-(&',4A-+-50,,93*&(
b4037-R)4T(83-U494);*2+34)C-1(2*4)
5(&+,(-b4037-64)F()C-+2;-84<()
)022*2>-84131@

K2-+'',*8+3*42-54)-+-<()A-,+)>(-10&-54)
:)4+;-A4037-64)F-67*87-;4(1-243
1'(8*5*8+,,A-+;;)(11-37(-8)*3()*+-45-A40)
\V)*;>*2>-U4&&02*3*(1\-')4>)+&&(@

B"^#CYNY DE

`(21*2>342-S
U7(,1(+

!!"OO

D3-/+)A-/+>;+,(2(
U(23)(-54)-?(50>((1
+2;-K1A,0&
D((F()1

K-10''4)3(;-QD[=-')4>)+&&(-6*37
403)(+87-+2;-+;<*8(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-*1-243-54)-QD[=-8,+11(1
'()-1(-:03-+2-+1148*+3(;-+;<*8(-+2;
10''4)3-1()<*8(-54)-)(50>((1C-67*87-5+,,1
4031*;(-A40)-502;*2>-8)*3()*+@

B^"C$GH DE

%1,*2>342

!!"^"

_&+33()-U74*8(1
U(23)(-=*&*3(;

I4-(13+:,*17-+-A402>-'(4',(\1
*28,01*42-+2;-847(1*42-')4T(83
;(1*>2(;-34-:)*2>-V+)F*2>-S
J+>(27+&-A402>13()1C-45-;*<()1(
:+8F>)402;1C-34>(37()-*2-+-)+2>(
45-148*+,C-(;08+3*42+,-+2;-437()
+83*<*3*(1@

K'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-*1-+-1&+,,->)40'
64)F*2>-')*28*'+,,A-42-1(P0+,-7(+,37-+2;
)(,+3(;-*110(1@-I7*1-')4T(83-3+F(1-37(
4)>+2*1+3*42-*2-+2437()-;*)(83*42-67*87
*1-243-'+)3-45-*31-84)(-64)F-+2;-840,;
13)(387-37(-4)>+2*1+3*42-:(A42;
8+'+8*3A@

B"HCG$$ DE

V+)F*2>-S
J+>(27+&

Total 02.  Bridging Communities (9 items) £785,725

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 293



03.  Improving Londoners' Mental Health

!!"G!

U+)(-34-=*13(2

.(-2((;-7(,'-34-(P'+2;-40)
<4,023(()-+2;-4)>+2*1+3*42+,
8+'+8*3A-34-455()-3+,F*2>-37()+'*(1
67*87-+)(-3+)>(3(;-+3-F(A
<0,2()+:,(->)40'1-(1'(8*+,,A-4,;()
'(4',(@

I7(-)(M0(13-*1-54)-502;*2>-346+);1-+
>(2()+,-84021(,,*2>-1()<*8(C-67*87-;4(1
243-1'(8*5*8+,,A-+;;)(11-+2A-45-37(
I)013\1-13+3(;-')*4)*3*(1@

B!OCYGY DE

U)4A;42

!!"NN

U+1+-;(-,+-D+,0;
a*1'+24-K&()*8+2+

I4-'+A-37(-)(23C-03*,*3A-:*,,-+2;
<4,023(()-(P'(21(1-45-37(-&(23+,
7(+,37-*2*3*+3*<(-+2;--4''4)302*3*(1
54)-4,;()-'(4',(-O#c-6*37-&(23+,
7(+,37-*110(1@@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-;4(1-243-50,,A-&((3-37(
')*4)*3*(1-45-37(-&(23+,-7(+,37
')4>)+&&(@-%3-+''(+)1-+3-37*1-3*&(-37(
I)013-640,;-:(-37(-,+)>(13-502;()-+1
=42;42-U4028*,1->)+23-(2;1-[834:()
"$!"@

B"HC$$$ DJ

a+)*2>(A

!!""G

E(3-U422(83(;

I7)((-A(+)1-84131-54)-+-a(,',*2(
+2;-d4,023(()-/+2+>()-34-)(8)0*3C
3)+*2-+2;-10''4)3-N$-+;;*3*42+,
<4,023(()1-+-A(+)C-34-10''4)3
ONC$$$-&4)(-A402>-'(4',(@

I7(-+'',*8+3*42-*1-54)-+-2+3*42+,-A4037
7(,',*2(-45-67*87-!"e-45-37(-80))(23
:(2(5*8*+)*(1-+)(-=42;42()1@-K,3740>7
37(-')4T(83-640,;-)(8)0*3-<4,023(()1
5)4&-37(-=42;42-+)(+C-42,A-!$C$$$-45
37(-ONC$$$-3+)>(3-7(,',*2(-:(2(5*8*+)*(1
640,;-:(-=42;42()1C-+2;-+1-1087C
10''4)3-8+2243-:(-)(84&&(2;(;@

BO$C$$$ LEU

U+&;(2

!!"YN

%1++8-V+,:+,4,+
KT*:4)4-X%VKZ

W02;1-+)(-)(M0(13(;-34-&+*23+*2
37(-(P*13*2>-1()<*8(1-34-8423*20(-34
*&')4<(-37(-,*<(1-45-87*,;)(2-+2;
+;0,31-6*37-;*1+:*,*3*(1-+2;-37(*)
'+)(231]8+)()1@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-1((F1-502;*2>-54)
429>4*2>-84)(-')4<*1*42-54)-;*1+:,(;
87*,;)(2C-67*87-;4(1-243-&((3-A40)
')4>)+&&(-8)*3()*+@

BH!C^$$ DE

D40376+)F

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 294



!!N$$

b40-+2;-/(
U4021(,,*2>

.+>(1-54)-"-'41*3*421-34->4-5)4&
:(*2>-<4,023(()1-34-42(-50,,-3*&(
+2;-42(-'+)3-3*&(-'41*3*421-*2-37(
4)>+2*1+3*421@

K'',*8+23-*1-+-<()A-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42
1((F*2>-+-,+)>(->)+23-9-67*87-*1-243
A40)-'4,*8A@

B!#OC$$$ DE

a+<()*2>

Total 03.  Improving Londoners' Mental Health (5 items) £298,598

04.  London's Environment

!!$G$

K&'7*:*+2-+2;
?('3*,(
U421()<+3*42-I)013

R)4&43(-+&'7*:*+2-+2;-)('3*,(
8421()<+3*42-*2-=42;42-37)40>7
')4<*;*2>-4''4)302*3*(1-34-*2<4,<(
'(4',(-*2-10)<(A-+2;-8421()<+3*42
&+2+>(&(23-+2;-37)40>7
')4<*;*2>-*254)&+3*42C-3)+*2*2>-+2;
+;<*8(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-*1-54)-<()A-1*&*,+)-64)FC
*2-1*&*,+)-+)(+1-45-=42;42C-34-37+3
')4'41(;-*2-+2-+'',*8+3*42-5)4&-+2437()
:4;A@-I7(-,+33()-:4;AC-746(<()C-7+1-+
1*>2*5*8+23-502;*2>-7*134)A-6*37-37(
I)013-+2;-+2-(13+:,*17(;-')(1(28(-*2
=42;42C-34>(37()-6*37-+-;(&4213)+:,(
3)+8F-)(84);-45-;(,*<()*2>-84&&02*3A
40384&(1@-K,3740>7-37(-')4'41(;
')4T(831-+)(-<()A-1*&*,+)C-37*1
+'',*8+3*42-*1-+11(11(;-34-:(-,(11-,*F(,A
45-37(-364-34-;(,*<()-37(-*23(2;(;
403'031-+2;-40384&(1@

B!N#CGYN U?

D40376+)F

!!"$#

K),*2>342
K1148*+3*42

.(-6+23-34-*&')4<(-37(-',+23*2>
*2-40)-,48+,->+);(2-1M0+)(-14-37(
:+)(-+)(+1-45-14*,-+)(-',+23(;-+2;
')4<*;(-+-2+30)+,-:*4;*<()1(
7+:*3+3@

K2-*23()(13*2>-')4T(83-5)4&-+-1&+,,
4)>+2*1+3*42@-I7(-5*2+28*+,-*254)&+3*42
')(1(23(;-54)-37(-80))(23-A(+)-640,;
&+F(-37(-I)013-37(-,+)>(13-1*2>,(-502;()
67*87-*1-243-A40)-'4,*8A@

BHCY$$ DJ

%1,*2>342

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 295



!!!YO

D+<(-I7(-.4),;
U,0:

I4-64)F-6*37-A402>-'(4',(-34
&+'C-8)(+3(-&41+*8-&0)+,1-+2;
(P7*:*3-+-<+)*(3A-45-37(
(2<*)42&(23+,-',+8(1C-+2;-5,4)+
+2;-5+02+-45-`*2>1342-*2
'+)32()17*'-6*37-,48+,-18744,1-+2;
+>(28*(1@

I7*1-')4T(83-')4'41+,-;4(1-243-+;;)(11
(*37()-37(-')*4)*3*(1-4)-40384&(1-45-A40)
\=42;42\1-Q2<*)42&(23\-')4>)+&&(@

B"NC"^^ DJ

`*2>1342

Total 04.  London's Environment (3 items) £164,060

05.  Older Londoners

!!"H!

%)+M*-K1148*+3*42

R)4T(83-6*,,-10''4)3-%)+M*-(,;()1-34
+88(11-*254)&+3*42-+2;-1()<*8(1-34
*&')4<(-37(*)-6(,,:(*2>-S-34-,*<(
*2;('(2;(23,A@-K83*<*3*(1-*28,0;(
403)(+87C-74&(9<*1*3C-+;<48+8A-S
K;<*8(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-1((F1-502;*2>-54)-+
')4T(83-<()A-1*&*,+)-34-42(-502;(;
')(<*401,A--+2;-67()(-37()(-7+1-243
:((2-+-37)((-A(+)-f5+,,46-'()*4;f-+1
)(M0*)(;@

B#^CYNO DE

a+&&()1&*37
S-W0,7+&

!!"GN

=42;42-D4&+,*
U4&&02*3A-K,,*+28(
X=DUKZ

Q,;(),A-D4&+,*1-6*,,-'+)3*8*'+3(
6*37*2-')4>)+&&(1-67*87-*&')4<(
37(*)-'7A1*8+,]&(23+,-7(+,37-+1
;(,*<()(;-:A-'(()1]10''4)3(;
<4,023(()1-;*)(83,A-*2-37(
84&&02*3A@

K'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-*1-+-1&+,,->)40'
67*87-7+1-1((2-*3\1-*284&(-;(',(3(
8421*;()+:,A-4<()-37(-,+13-5(6-A(+)1@
I7(->)+23-)(M0(13-*1-,*F(,A-34-;40:,(-37(
+220+,-30)24<()C-67*87-*1-243-A40)
'4,*8A@

BN#C^G# DJ

g(67+&

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 296



!!""#

/42+FF+-/4246+)
.(,5+)(-W402;+3*42
X//.WZ

R)4<*;*2>-148*+,C-80,30)+,C-7(+,37A
,*<*2>-+2;-<4,023(()*2>-+83*<*3*(1
54)-<0,2()+:,(-4,;()-'(4',(-674
+)(-+3-)*1F-45-*14,+3*42-+2;
;*1+;<+23+>(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-')4'41(1-42,A-+-<()A
,46-20&:()-45-:(2(5*8*+)*(1-+2;-37()(-*1
*21055*8*(23-(<*;(28(-45-67A-2(6
')4<*1*42-*1-2((;(;@-/413-45-37(
+'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42\1-(P*13*2>-64)F-*1
6*37-A402>-'(4',(-+2;]4)
3)+*2*2>9)(,+3(;@

B"HCYH$ DE

I46()-a+&,(31

!!"OH

D7)((-R)+T+'+3*
K1148*+3*42-=42;42
V)+287

.(-6+23-*&')4<(-37(-+88(11*:*,*3A
34-40)-8(23)(-54)-37(-(,;(),A
&(&:()1-*2-40)-84&&02*3A-+2;
3741(-6*37-;*1+:*,*3*(1@

W02;1-+)(-140>73-54)-64)F1-34-+-8+)
'+)F*2>-+)(+-6*37403-+2A-)(5()(28(-34
+2-+88(11-',+2-4)-+0;*3@

B!NCY$$ DE

V)(23

Total 05.  Older Londoners (4 items) £132,271

06.  Positive Transitions to Independent Living

!!$Y$

K83*42-42-a(+)*2>
=411

a(+)-34-a(,'-1()<*8(1-')4<*;(
10''4)3-34-gaD-7(+)*2>-+*;-01()1
*2-37(-,48+,-84&&02*3A@

I7(-')4'41+,-*1-34-+11*13-'(4',(-&+2+>(
+2;-&+*23+*2-37(*)-7(+)*2>-+*;1-37)40>7
+0>&(23*2>-(P*13*2>-gaD-1()<*8(1-+3
h0((2-/+)A\1-+2;-D3-E()4>(\1
a41'*3+,1@-.7*,13-02;403(;,A-<+,0+:,(C
34-10''4)3-37*1-+'',*8+3*42-640,;-1(3-+
')(8(;(23-54)-37(-I)013-*2C-(55(83*<(,AC
(+1*2>-')(110)(-42-gaD-1()<*8(1-+2;
6+*3*2>-,*131@

B^"C"O! U?

%1,*2>342

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 297



!!"H"

E)((2,(+5-I)013-=3;

I4-'+A-1+,+)*(1-45-'+)3-3*&(-13+55C
13+3*42()AC-3)+*2*2>-X'+*;-13+55-S
<4,023(()1ZC-3)+<(,-(P'(21(1-45-40)
<4,023(()1-+2;-10''4)3-45-40)
8,*(231@

K-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42-)(M0(13*2>-+-<()A
,+)>(-10&@-%3-*1-243-A40)-'4,*8A-34-+6+);
1087->)+231@

B!^HC"!# DE

.+,37+&
W4)(13

!!"!!

/+F(;+-.(+<()
R)4T(83

Q&',4A-+-D3)+3(>*8-J(<(,4'&(23
/+2+>()-34-(2+:,(-(P'+2;*2>
80))(23-1()<*8(-,(<(,1C-;(<(,4'-+
13)+3(>*8-:01*2(11-',+2-+2;
*&',(&(23-+-502;)+*1*2>-13)+3(>A@

I7(-')4'41+,-*1-54)-+-;(<(,4'&(23+,
'413-6*37*2-+-10:1*;*+)A-45-+-&+T4)
7401*2>-+1148*+3*42-+2;-37(-64)F-*1-243
1055*8*(23,A-54801(;-42-)(1(33,(&(23
64)F-6*37-(P9455(2;()1C-37()(54)(-5+*,*2>
34-&((3-37(-I)013\1-')*4)*3*(1@

BYYC^O$ U?

a+8F2(A

!!"NG

g+3*42+,
J(<(,4'&(23-I(+&
54)-%28,01*42-XgJI*Z

I4-10''4)3-A402>-'(4',(-6*37
,(+)2*2>-+2;-+;;*3*42+,-;*1+:*,*3*(1
X+2;-37(*)-5+&*,*(1Z-*2-3)+21*3*42-34
7+<(-874*8(-+2;-8423)4,-*2-&4<*2>
34-*2;('(2;(23-,*<*2>@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-*1-5)4&-+2-4)>+2*1+3*42
:+1(;-4031*;(-=42;42C-6*37-+2-*23(23*42
34-64)F-*2-'+)32()17*'-6*37
4)>+2*1+3*421-*2-364-=42;42-:4)40>71@-
I7(-'43(23*+,-'+)32()1-7+<(-243-:((2
*;(23*5*(;C-24)-*1-37()(-(P',+2+3*42-45
64)F*2>-+))+2>(&(231-4)-45-67A-,48+,
')4<*;()1-840,;-243-;4-37*1-64)F@--I7(
20&:()1-45-'(4',(-64)F(;-6*37-+''(+)
,46-*2-)(,+3*42-34-37(-84131C-+2;-37(
*23(2;(;-40384&(1-+)(-243-50,,A-8,(+)@

B!"$CY"H Lh/

[031*;(
=42;42

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 298



!!$!Y

R=%KD-?(1(33,(&(23

I46+);1-37(-1+,+)A-84131-45-+-50,,
3*&(-Q&',4A&(23-U+1(64)F()-34
')4<*;(-(&',4A&(23-+;<*8(-+2;
10''4)3-34-(P9455(2;()1-+2;
(P9')*142()1-34-10''4)3-37(*)
)(*23(>)+3*42-+2;-3)+21*3*42-:+8F
*234-64)F@

.7*,13-37*1-*1-+2-*&'4)3+23-+)(+-45-64)FC
37(-4)>+2*1+3*42\1-,+8F-45-5)((-)(1()<(1
+2;-45-+-)(1()<(1-'4,*8A-&(+2-37+3
37()(-*1-+2-*21055*8*(23-5*2+28*+,-8017*42
34-02;()'*2-+->)+23-45-37*1-18+,(-+2;
;0)+3*42@

B!"$C$G$ U?

V)(23

!!!$H

?0>:A-W443:+,,
K1148*+3*42

R)4<*;*2>-3)+*2*2>-+2;
M0+,*5*8+3*421-54)-174)3-3()&
')*142()1-+2;-&(234)(;-)0>:A
',+8(&(231-0'42-)(,(+1(@-
R)4<*;*2>-24298)*&*2+,-+1148*+3(1
+2;-24298)*&*2+,-+83*<*3*(1-0'42
)(,(+1(@

.7*,13-37(-')4'41(;-')4T(83-640,;-:(
(,*>*:,(-54)-A40)-8421*;()+3*42C-37(
+'',*8+23-:4;A-*1-37(-455*8*+,-87+)*3A-45
37(-?0>:A-_2*42->4<()2*2>-:4;A-+2;
)(8(*<(1-+,&413-+,,-45-*31-1*>2*5*8+23
*284&(XB!#/Z-5)4&-37+3-4)>+2*1+3*42@
g4-8+1(-*1-&+;(-+1-34-67A-(P3()2+,
502;*2>-*1-)(M0*)(;-54)-37*1-')4T(83@

B^OC!$$ DE

?*87&42;

Total 06.  Positive Transitions to Independent Living (6 items) £652,250

07.  Strengthening the Third Sector

!!"NH

U%Ib@U[//C--+
')4T(83-45-d4,023+)A
K83*42-.(13&*213()

I4-;(<(,4'->4<()2+28(-+2;
5*2+28*+,-1F*,,1-8+'+8*3A-*2-U*3A]U*3A
W)*2>(-37*);-1(834)->)40'1-:A
>*<*2>-37(&-+88(11-34-1F*,,(;C
&43*<+3(;-+2;-3)+*2(;-<4,023(()1@

I7*1-*1-+-<()A-(P'(21*<(-')4'41+,C-6*37
42,A-+-')4'4)3*42-45-37(-:(2(5*8*+)*(1-*2
37(-U*3A@-I7(-)(&+*2;()-+)(-*2
2(*>7:40)*2>-:4)40>71-67*87-13)+A1
4234-37(-3())*34)A-45-437()-UdD1@

B!Y"CNH$ DE

U*3A

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 299



!!!^#

/4)(-I7+2-E4,;

I4-')('+)(-+-84&')(7(21*<(
(<+,0+3*42-45-37(-*&'+83-37+3
870)87-;(24&*2+3*421-+2;
87+)*3*(1-7+<(-7+;-*2-(2>+>*2>
37(*)-84&&02*3*(1-*2-37(-[,A&'*8
>+&(1@

K-842501*2>-+'',*8+3*42C-67()(-37(
3*&*2>-45-37(-)(M0(13-640,;-&+F(-+2A
>)+23-)(3)41'(83*<(-+2;-37()(54)(
*2(,*>*:,(@

B"#C$$$ DE

%1,*2>342

!!"^!

D4&+,*-R+)(231
%2*3*+3*<(

W)4&-D('3(&:()-"$!"C-D4&+,*
R+)(231-%2*3*+3*<(-6*,,-2((;-502;*2>
34-84<()-)(23-45-2(6-84&&02*3A
')(&*1(1-X80))(23-)(23-5)((
')(&*1(1-;0(-34-:(-;(&4,*17(;Z
+2;-:+,+28(-45-3034)-84131@

K-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42-1((F*2>-+-,+)>(
>)+23-67*87-640,;-&4)(-37+2-;40:,(
37(-+220+,-*284&(-9-67*87-*1-243-A40)
'4,*8A@

B!HHCN$N DE

E)((26*87

Total 07.  Strengthening the Third Sector (3 items) £351,643

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$9.-)O,$PQF$+-"3,R SFTUQVTWXG

P
age 300



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications (Working with 

Londoners programme)  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to those applications to the Working 

with Londoners programme which have been subsequently withdrawn 

by the applicant or lapsed due to additional information not 

forthcoming. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 

Withdrawn Applications: 
 

Organisation      Purpose of Request 
 

 

Anchor House: London 

Inter-Diocesan Council of 
the Apostleship of the Sea 

“Anchor House seeks funding for the salary 

of a Lifestyle Architect (ESOL Tutor) 
delivering ESOL skills to previously 

homeless residents and members of the 

local community.” 
 

Following discussions with your officer the 

organisation wishes to withdraw this 

application and re-apply with a proposal 

which is a better fit with your priorities. 

 
 

Fight for Peace “To bring young people from different 

ethnic backgrounds and territorial areas in 

East London together to break down the 
barriers and conflicts between them.” 
 

The proposal has been withdrawn and the 

organisation wishes to re-submit a revised 

application with amended costings. 

 

Agenda Item 7d

Page 301



Credo "’Arts2Independence’ will support people 

who have experienced mental ill-health 

along a pathway that builds confidence, 

skills and provides opportunities which 

successfully enable independent living.” 
 

The application was for an essentially 

similar purpose to the previous grant and 

the required period of three years has not 

elapsed. After discussion with your officer, 

the organisation decided to withdraw the 

request. 
 

 

Richmond Youth 

Partnership 

“To help support salary costs to maintain a 

youth friendly counselling service to 

improve the emotional wellbeing of young 

people aged 11-25 living in Richmond and 

surrounding areas.” 
 

Having received a final monitoring report in 

April 2010 for the previous grant held by 
this organisation, and with this application 

for activities similar to those supported 
previously, this project is ineligible for 

funding until 2013. Advised of this, the 

organisation has withdrawn its application. 
 

 

Octopus Community 
Network 

“Wild Places is driven by the desire within 
Islington's communities to increase 

environmental literacy, access to green 

spaces and create new urban wildlife 

habitats.” 
 

Following a conversation with your officer 

on the costs of the proposal the 

organisation has chosen to withdraw and 

revise its application. 
 

 

Navjivan Vadil Kendra “To take elderly and lonely people on day 

trips and longer trips and bring cheer and 

joy in their lives, improve quality of life and 

allow them to build companionships.” 
 

Withdrawn as the organisation wishes to 

apply for three year funding for which this 

project is ineligible, having already been 
supported by you for two years. 

 

Page 302



Peckham Settlement “Priming for 'One-to-One' social enterprise 

to support and befriend over-75s in 

Southwark through proactive contact and 

personal assistant service, allowing them to 

live more independently.” 
 

Application withdrawn as the organisation 

has recently gone into administration. 

 

 

Stroke Care “Run a 2 year health advocacy project for 

people over 65 from Black, Minority Ethnic 

and Refugee communities, living in 

Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham, 

promoting healthier/active lifestyle.” 
 

This organisation has been undergoing 

change including adopting a new 

constitution. Its financial management is 
not yet clarified.  Following discussions with 

your officer, the organisation decided to 
withdraw this application and re-submit at a 

later date. 

 

 
 

 
Total Withdrawn Applications: 8 

Total Lapsed Applications:  0 

 
 

 
 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 
Tel:  020 7332 3712 
Email:  stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Date report written:  11/09/12 

Page 303



Page 304

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012          

 

Subject: 

Diamond Jubilee Grants Programme – Growing 

Localities Update 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

 

Summary  

 

This paper provides an update on Growing Localities – the new 

grants programme celebrating Her Majesty The Queen’s Diamond 

Jubilee.   

It summarises the grant-making criteria for the programme with 

its 2 strands: Growing and Greening and Horticultural Work 

Training.   

It advises you on the progress of the initial proposals for the 
Horticultural Work Training strand, which is a closed programme 

where suitably qualified organisations were invited to submit an 

outline proposal.  Eleven organisations have now been invited to 
apply for a grant through your normal procedures. 

This paper also details the criteria, eligibility and application 
process for a proposed City of London Growing Localities Awards 

scheme and seeks your approval for a budget of £17,400 for this 
purpose.   

Recommendation 

That you approve a budget of £17,400 for the City of London 

Growing Localities Awards to be charged against the local risk 

budget of £100,000 for the 2012/13 running costs of the Growing 

Localities Grants Programme. 

Main Report 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 This paper is to advise you on the development of your latest grant 

programme, Growing Localities.  It reminds you of the guidance which 

you have agreed and which you will need to consider when making your 

decisions on applications for this programme.  You will find that the 

Members’ Handbook has been updated to reflect this.   

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 305



2.0 Background 

 

2.1 At its meeting on 10th November 2011, the Policy & Resources 

Committee approved an additional £2.1m from headroom in Bridge 

House Estates; £2m for a discrete grants programme and £100,000 

running costs, as part of the City of London’s contribution to the 

celebration of Her Majesty The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee.  Her Majesty 

graciously agreed to be patron of the Growing Localities programme and 

provided a letter of support.  

 

2.2 The Growing Localities programme was launched on 17th May 2012 by 

Joanna Lumley and Raymond Blanc in a ‘pop-up’ garden in Guildhall 

Yard.  This was also an occasion for some of the city farms and 

community gardens which you fund to display and sell their produce.  

This highly successful event served to help communicate the purpose 

and nature of Growing Localities and attracted widespread national and 

regional publicity. 

 
3.0 Growing Localities – Aims of the Programme 

 

3.1 Growing Localities aims to: 

 
• make better use of London’s green spaces 
• encourage community engagement, ownership and volunteering 
• help reduce social isolation through working with others 
• teach people the value of biodiversity, growing food and 
beekeeping 

• engage people of all ages in the management of their community 
green space and improving their local environment 

• encourage young unemployed people and other special needs 
groups into horticultural/market garden accredited work training or 

apprenticeships.  

 

4.0 The Programme’s Elements  

 

4.1 The existing programme has two distinct elements: 

 

4.2 Growing and Greening: for established organisations with a track 

record of managing green spaces, horticultural initiatives, growing food 

locally or beekeeping.  Organisations must demonstrate or have 

experience of working with local community groups. 

 

Specific Criteria:  organisations which can demonstrate that their work 

contributes to some of the aims of Growing Localities, including a track 

record of working with small, local groups. 

 

Awards will not exceed £50,000 in total, of which £5,000 may be 

reserved to help small community groups with which they may be 

working, with financial support for equipment or training, for example. 

Page 306



4.3 Horticultural Work Training: for organisations offering horticultural 

work training opportunities to people with special needs and young 

people not in education, employment or training (NEETS).  Work will be 

targeted towards the most disadvantaged in the labour market.  This 

strand is by invitation only. 

 

Specific Criteria: organisations which can demonstrate: 

 

• experience in providing horticultural/market gardening work 
training 

• experience of reaching the most disadvantaged young people or 
those with special needs, including NEETS, disabled young people, 

ex-offenders and those with anti-social behaviour orders 

• excellent connections with providers of work placements with job 
opportunities or apprenticeships 

• interest in or experience of green social enterprise 
• a track record of success in securing work opportunities through 
developing contracts and apprenticeships 

• other sources of funding 
 

Awards will not exceed £100,000 in total for up to two years. 

 
5.0 Applications Update 

 
5.1 Growing and Greening 

 

5.2 At this meeting, you will be asked to make a decision on eleven 

applications, all of which have applied to the strand of the programme 
known as Growing and Greening.  Four of these are recommended for 

approval and seven are recommended for rejection.  We expect to see a 
marked increase in applications during the autumn. 

 

6.0 Horticultural Work Training 

 

6.1 Applications to this strand were by invitation only.  £1m has been 

reserved for Horticultural Work Training and you agreed to a proactive 

approach to ensure that only those organisations with a proven track 

record could apply.   

 

6.2 Recognising that work training for NEETS was complex and expensive, 

you agreed that grants of up to £100,000 could be awarded.  We expect 

to make about ten grants in total. 

 

6.3 As agreed at your meeting in October 2011, we invited 40 suitably 

qualified organisations to submit an initial 3-page proposal together with 

annual reports and accounts. 

 

6.4 We received 21 proposals and from these we shortlisted 11 organisations 

which most closely measured up to the criteria as specified in the strand 

of the programme for Horticultural Work Training (para. 4.3).  These 11 

Page 307



organisations have now been invited to submit an online application in 

accordance with your usual procedures.  If these organisations wish to 

proceed they will need to have submitted their applications by 10th 

September 2012. 

 

6.5 Officers will assess all these applications in September and bring all of 

them to a meeting in the autumn for your decision. 

 

7.0 Communications 

 

7.1 We are working closely with the Press and Public Relations Team on how 

to publicise these grants. £1m is a significant contribution towards 

tackling youth unemployment and this will be announced as part of your 

press strategy.  At the same time these grants will help meet the City of 

London’s priorities: 

  

• Supporting London’s communities 
• Looking after London’s green spaces and heritage 

 

8.0 Growing Localities Awards 

 

8.1 At your meeting in April 2012 officers advised that, as part of the 
Growing Localities initiative, added value could be gained through an 

Awards Programme which would identify examples of good practice and 
encourage innovation or excellence.  These awards would not cut across 

the Sustainable City Awards and largely do not duplicate the London in 

Bloom Awards which are aimed at a different audience. 

 
8.2 Your officers have now approached the consultancy Lemos & Crane, 

which runs the successful Acorn Awards (UK-wide), to discuss how this 
might be progressed.  Lemos & Crane’s proven leadership in running 

awards programmes (14 different schemes) and knowledge of the 

Growing Localities programme make it well positioned to run your 

awards scheme. 

 

8.3 The City of London’s Growing Localities Awards (working title) will target 

a wide range of non-profit organisations which may be carrying out 

environmental activities which are ancillary to their main purpose. For 

example, target organisations in London might include: 

 

• Homeless agencies 
• Supported housing (providing mental health services, substance 
misuse, etc.) 

• Social housing providers 
• Residential care providers 
• Health organisations 
• Hospices 
• Prisons 
• Churches and faith groups 
• Other community-based and voluntary organisations 

Page 308



 

8.4 There would be 5 award categories: 

 

• Gardening and growing food: for communal eating and small-scale 
enterprise. 

• Introducing young people to nature: encouraging young people to 
develop an interest in nature through bird-watching and similar 

activities. 

• Keeping animals: bees, chickens, pigs, etc. for the experience of 
care but also to farm where appropriate 

• Nature-themed arts and crafts: woodcraft, photography, film-
making, writing, etc. 

• Reclaiming and developing wasteland – led by residents and 
tenants. 

 

All of these categories support the aims of the Growing Localities 

programme as set out in para. 3.1. 

 
8.5 In order to incentivise would-be applicants, a winner and a runner-up in 

each of the 5 categories would receive a grant.  Each winner would 

receive £1,000 and each runner-up £500.  In making the award, the 

grant will be made to the successful organisations on the basis that the 
money will be applied by the organisation to continue or to add to the 

work which led to the grant being awarded, thereby furthering the 
objectives of Bridge House Estates and the City Bridge Trust; to benefit 

the inhabitants of London.  The grant must be for work in the London 

area. 

 
9.0 The Application Process 

 
9.1 There will be an entry form which will ask for a 1,000-word proposal 

covering the project aims, activities, achievements and evaluation and 

will also ask for photographs and videos as supporting evidence.  

 

9.2 Each application would include a reference from an independent referee 

such as a local authority or council for voluntary service representative 

or Member of Parliament. 

 

9.3 Your grants officer will conduct a due diligence exercise on those 

organisations which are shortlisted. 

 

10.0 The Judging Process 

 

10.0 Lemos & Crane and your officer Sandra Davidson would review the 

entries and draw up a shortlist.  A judging panel comprising the 

Chairman of the City Bridge Trust or his representative, the Director of 

Open Spaces or her representative, the Chief Grants Officer and a 

representative from Lemos & Crane would select the winners. 

 

 

Page 309



 

11.0 Sharing Learning 

 

11.1 The Awards would be widely published at regional and local level and will 

highlight examples of best practice; and demonstrate to a wide audience 

how the “localities” have been enhanced. 

 

11.2 Knowledge gathered through the Awards programme will also inform 

future initiatives of the City Bridge Trust and the grants sector generally.  

 

12.0 Financial Implications 

 

12.1 At its meeting on 10 November 2011, the Policy & Resources Committee 

approved a sum of £2.1m for your Growing Localities Initiative.  Of this, 

£2m was for grants and £100k was for running costs and local risk 

budget 2012/13 was uplifted to reflect this.  The budget estimates were 

as follows: 

 
• Freelance Assessors 150 days at £350 per day   £52,500 

• Administrative support at 10 hours per week     £7,800 

• Monitoring costs        £11,000 

• Publicity materials         £5,000 
• Costs of evaluation       £10,000 

• Travel and subsistence         £1,000 
• Contingency        £12,700 

• Total                       £100,000 

    

12.2 The costs of running the City of London’s Growing Localities Awards are 
as follows:  

 
• Developing database of contacts and promoting the Awards  £6,900 
• Reviewing entries and drawing up a shortlist      £1,800 

• Promoting the final results         £1,200 

• Grant Awards           £7,500 

TOTAL          £17,400 

 

12.3 It is proposed that part of the cost of the Awards be charged against the 

£12,700 reserved for contingency purposes, whilst the balance of £4,700 

needed will be taken from the allocation of £52,500 for freelance 

assessors, leaving a balance of £47,800 on hand.  Officers judge that 

this will be sufficient to meet the on-going requirements of the grants 

programme as applications have been fewer to date than expected. 

Page 310



13.0 Timetable 

 

September 2012 – Refining Criteria/Entry forms 

 

October/November 2012 – Develop database of contacts/Promotion 

 

December 2012 – Deadline for entries 

 

January 2013 – Reviewing entries/shortlisting 

 

February/March 2013 – Final Judging/dissemination/publicity. 

 

 

14.0 Consultations 

 

14.1 The Comptroller & City Solicitor and the Director of Open Spaces have 

been consulted and are supportive. 

 
15.0 Conclusion 

 

15.1 Growing Localities is developing well and should provide a fitting legacy 

for Her Majesty The Queen’s Diamond Jubilee, by engaging local 
communities in improving their localities.  The Horticultural Work 

Training strand will both improve the employability of some of London’s 
mist disengaged young people and provide us with valuable ‘learning’ 

which will help inform policy developments in the field of youth 

unemployment. 

 
15.2 The City of London’s Growing Localities Awards scheme will help promote 

best practice in “growing and greening” across diverse sectors and widely 
differing organisations; and should attract favourable publicity for the 

City of London Corporation. 

 

 

 Recommendation 
 

 That you approve a budget of £17,400 for the City of London Growing 

 Localities Awards to be charged against the local risk budget of £100,000 

 for the 2012/13 running costs of the Growing Localities Grants 

 Programme. 

 

 

 

 

Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 

020 7332 3711 

Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 04/09/2012    

Page 311



Page 312

This page is intentionally left blank



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 27 September 2012 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations - Growing Localities 

 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

 12. Growing Localities 

 1 11284 Tree Council £47,000 £47,000 315 

 2 11344 Islington Play £43,627 £45,200 324 

 Association 

 3 11275 Hackney City Farm £50,000 £50,000 334 

 4 11334 Poplar Housing & £49,760 £39,900 343 

 Regeneration 

 Community 

 Association 

 

 Grand Totals £190,387 £182,100 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 313



Page 314

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Working with Londoners - Recommended for 

Rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

 
Summary  

 
This report and the accompanying schedule outlines 32 grant 

applications to your Working with Londoners programme that, 

for the reason(s) identified, are recommended for rejection. 
 

Recommendation 

 

That the grant applications detailed in the accompanying 
schedule be rejected. 

 

Main Report 

1. There are a total of 32 applications on your Working with 

Londoners programme recommended for rejection at this 

meeting. They are listed alphabetically within categories in 

the accompanying schedule. In each case the “purpose” 

that is used to describe the application is that provided by 

the applicant organisation. All the recommendations are 

based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance. 
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in 

the Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member 

wishes to query any of the recommendations, this can 

either be done at the meeting, in which case the decision 

may be deferred while full details are provided to the 

Member concerned, or by contacting the Trust office in 

advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 

provided for the Member concerned prior to or at the 

meeting.  

 
Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 

020 7332 3712   stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 11/09/12 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 353



Page 354

This page is intentionally left blank



01.  Accessible London

!!"#$

%&'()*+,-.+)
/01(0&

%213+,,+3*42-45-&4)(
67((,87+*)9+88(11*:,(-,*531-*234-37(
)(;(<(,4'(;-%./-=42;42-:0*,;*2>
+3-=+&:(37-?4+;@

%3-*1-243-A40)-'4,*8A-34-502;-37(->(2()+,
)(50):*17&(23-84131-45-37(-,+)>(
2+3*42+,-&01(0&1-+2;->+,,()*(1@

B"$$C$$$ DE

D40376+)F

!!"GH

D7+F(1'(+)(-E,4:(
I)013

J(,*<()*2>-+-8494);*2+3(;-K88(11
')4<*1*42-54)-+0;*(28(1-+2;
'()54)&()1-*2-40)-2(6-*2;44)
L+84:(+2-37(+3)(-+2;-K88(11
1*>2+>(-+8)411-37(-E,4:(-1*3(

I7(-+'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-*1-+-37(+3)(
45-2+3*42+,-+2;-*23()2+3*42+,-)(2462@
I7(-)(M0(13-&+F(1-24-&(23*42-45-+2A
1'(8*5*8-=42;42-:(2(5*3-+2;-37(
+'',*8+3*42-8+2243-37()(54)(-:(
10''4)3(;@

B#!CN$$ DE

D40376+)F

Total 01.  Accessible London (2 items) £251,300

02.  Bridging Communities

!!"OG

KP*1-Q;08+3*42+,
I)013

R)4<*;*2>-DF*,,1-54)-=*5(-840)1(1-54)
*&&*>)+23-64&(2-67*87-6*,,-+,14
(2840)+>(-148*+,-*23(>)+3*42-S
84&&02*3A-847(1*42C-KP*1-6*,,
*&')4<(-,*5(-13+2;+);1-45
;*1+;<+23+>(;-5+&*,*(1@

I7(-:0;>(3-54)-37(-')4T(83-*1-<()A-7(+<A
42-10''4)3-+2;-42984131-)+37()-37+2
+830+,-;(,*<()A@-?(30)21-34-U7+)*3A
U4&&*11*42-+)(-+,14-'()(2*+,,A-,+3(@

B"!C"NO DE

%1,*2>342

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<=9>$?!=@8;$9!AB9
9C"$<+-D$?'+4("$9'0,-$<.33+--""$E$FG$B"1-"3H"'$FIJF

B033)'D$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$E$K.'L+*($M+-C$N.*4.*"',

P
age 355



!!"#N

V+)F*2>-+2;
J+>(27+&-W+*37
W4)0&

I7(-1+,+)A-45-+-'+)393*&(-X!Y
740)1-'()-6((FZ-W+*37
U4&&02*3*(1-[03)(+87-.4)F()
'413-34-13)(2>37(2-8423+83-6*37
+2;-:0*,;-1013+*2+:,(-:)*;>(1
:(36((2-37(-:4)40>7\1-;*<()1(
5+*37]:(,*(5-84&&02*3*(1@

I7(-+'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-7+1-24-,(>+,
(23*3A-+2;-37(-(&',4A&(23-45-13+55-*2
1087-8*)80&13+28(-*1-243->44;-')+83*8(@

B"HCY$$ DE

V+)F*2>-S
J+>(27+&

!!"YG

U42M0()4)1-U*3A
U70)87-=*&*3(;

I4-84<()-37(-8413-45-)(23*2>-455*8(
')(&*1(1@

K-2(6-4)>+2*1+3*42-1((F*2>-+
8423)*:03*42-346+);1->(2()+,-)022*2>
84131C-67*87-5+,,1-4031*;(-A40)-')*4)*3*(1@

B!#C$$$ DE

U)4A;42

!!"^H

WKDI-=42;42-_`

WKDI-')4'41(-34-:)*;>(
84&&02*3*(1-:A-)022*2>-+-F(('5*3
8,+11-*2-37(-84&&02*3AC-(&'46()
84&&02*3*(1-:A-5+8*,*3+3*2>-+
84&&02*3A-54)0&-+2;-Q23)A-,(<(,
QD[=-840)1(@

I7*1-4)>+2*1+3*42-)('4)31-37+3-*3-7+1-,413
+,,-*31-502;*2>-+2;-7+1-')4<*;(;-24
;(3+*,1-45-746-*3-(P'(831-34-&((3-*31
)022*2>-84131C-(13*&+3(;-+3-B!Y$C$$$-*2
"$!"]!N@

B!GCO^$ DE

=+&:(37

!!"Y$

a(+,37*()-=*5(-H-b40

K-2(6-+2;-*224<+3*<(-')4T(83C-14
37+3-6(-8+2-1(3-0'-+2;-)02
84&&02*3A-:+1(;-1(11*421-6*37*2
37(-;(')*<(;-+)(+1-45-37(
84&&02*3A@

K-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42-1((F*2>-+-,+)>(
>)+23-54)-<()A->(2()+,-84&&02*3A
;(<(,4'&(23-64)FC-67*87-;4(1-243
&((3-A40)-')4>)+&&(-')*4)*3*(1@

B"$"C"NH DE

V)(23

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 356



!!"#Y

a4021,46-?+8(-+2;
QM0+,*3*(1-U4028*,

I4-(13+:,*17-+-'+)32()17*'-6*37
(M0+,*3A->)40'1-*2-a4021,46@-.(
+*&-34-:0*,;-8+'+8*3A-*2-37(
<4,023+)A-1(834)-+2;-(&'46()
*2;*<*;0+,1-6*37-37(*)-)*>73-02;()
QM0+,*3A\1-K83-"$!$

K-)(,+3*<(,A-,+)>(-)(M0(13C-67*87-;4(1
243-&+F(-1055*8*(23,A-8,(+)-746-37(
')4'41(;-64)F-&((31-37(-I)013\1
')*4)*3*(1@

B!"GCG#N I.

a4021,46

!!"NO

/+F*2>
U4&&02*3*(1-.4)F
S-E)46

I4-)(M0(13-502;*2>-34-(2+:,(-01-34
8423*20(-34-(&',4A-+-50,,93*&(
b4037-R)4T(83-U494);*2+34)C-1(2*4)
5(&+,(-b4037-64)F()C-+2;-84<()
)022*2>-84131@

K2-+'',*8+3*42-54)-+-<()A-,+)>(-10&-54)
:)4+;-A4037-64)F-67*87-;4(1-243
1'(8*5*8+,,A-+;;)(11-37(-8)*3()*+-45-A40)
\V)*;>*2>-U4&&02*3*(1\-')4>)+&&(@

B"^#CYNY DE

`(21*2>342-S
U7(,1(+

!!"OO

D3-/+)A-/+>;+,(2(
U(23)(-54)-?(50>((1
+2;-K1A,0&
D((F()1

K-10''4)3(;-QD[=-')4>)+&&(-6*37
403)(+87-+2;-+;<*8(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-*1-243-54)-QD[=-8,+11(1
'()-1(-:03-+2-+1148*+3(;-+;<*8(-+2;
10''4)3-1()<*8(-54)-)(50>((1C-67*87-5+,,1
4031*;(-A40)-502;*2>-8)*3()*+@

B^"C$GH DE

%1,*2>342

!!"^"

_&+33()-U74*8(1
U(23)(-=*&*3(;

I4-(13+:,*17-+-A402>-'(4',(\1
*28,01*42-+2;-847(1*42-')4T(83
;(1*>2(;-34-:)*2>-V+)F*2>-S
J+>(27+&-A402>13()1C-45-;*<()1(
:+8F>)402;1C-34>(37()-*2-+-)+2>(
45-148*+,C-(;08+3*42+,-+2;-437()
+83*<*3*(1@

K'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-*1-+-1&+,,->)40'
64)F*2>-')*28*'+,,A-42-1(P0+,-7(+,37-+2;
)(,+3(;-*110(1@-I7*1-')4T(83-3+F(1-37(
4)>+2*1+3*42-*2-+2437()-;*)(83*42-67*87
*1-243-'+)3-45-*31-84)(-64)F-+2;-840,;
13)(387-37(-4)>+2*1+3*42-:(A42;
8+'+8*3A@

B"HCG$$ DE

V+)F*2>-S
J+>(27+&

Total 02.  Bridging Communities (9 items) £785,725

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 357



03.  Improving Londoners' Mental Health

!!"G!

U+)(-34-=*13(2

.(-2((;-7(,'-34-(P'+2;-40)
<4,023(()-+2;-4)>+2*1+3*42+,
8+'+8*3A-34-455()-3+,F*2>-37()+'*(1
67*87-+)(-3+)>(3(;-+3-F(A
<0,2()+:,(->)40'1-(1'(8*+,,A-4,;()
'(4',(@

I7(-)(M0(13-*1-54)-502;*2>-346+);1-+
>(2()+,-84021(,,*2>-1()<*8(C-67*87-;4(1
243-1'(8*5*8+,,A-+;;)(11-+2A-45-37(
I)013\1-13+3(;-')*4)*3*(1@

B!OCYGY DE

U)4A;42

!!"NN

U+1+-;(-,+-D+,0;
a*1'+24-K&()*8+2+

I4-'+A-37(-)(23C-03*,*3A-:*,,-+2;
<4,023(()-(P'(21(1-45-37(-&(23+,
7(+,37-*2*3*+3*<(-+2;--4''4)302*3*(1
54)-4,;()-'(4',(-O#c-6*37-&(23+,
7(+,37-*110(1@@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-;4(1-243-50,,A-&((3-37(
')*4)*3*(1-45-37(-&(23+,-7(+,37
')4>)+&&(@-%3-+''(+)1-+3-37*1-3*&(-37(
I)013-640,;-:(-37(-,+)>(13-502;()-+1
=42;42-U4028*,1->)+23-(2;1-[834:()
"$!"@

B"HC$$$ DJ

a+)*2>(A

!!""G

E(3-U422(83(;

I7)((-A(+)1-84131-54)-+-a(,',*2(
+2;-d4,023(()-/+2+>()-34-)(8)0*3C
3)+*2-+2;-10''4)3-N$-+;;*3*42+,
<4,023(()1-+-A(+)C-34-10''4)3
ONC$$$-&4)(-A402>-'(4',(@

I7(-+'',*8+3*42-*1-54)-+-2+3*42+,-A4037
7(,',*2(-45-67*87-!"e-45-37(-80))(23
:(2(5*8*+)*(1-+)(-=42;42()1@-K,3740>7
37(-')4T(83-640,;-)(8)0*3-<4,023(()1
5)4&-37(-=42;42-+)(+C-42,A-!$C$$$-45
37(-ONC$$$-3+)>(3-7(,',*2(-:(2(5*8*+)*(1
640,;-:(-=42;42()1C-+2;-+1-1087C
10''4)3-8+2243-:(-)(84&&(2;(;@

BO$C$$$ LEU

U+&;(2

!!"YN

%1++8-V+,:+,4,+
KT*:4)4-X%VKZ

W02;1-+)(-)(M0(13(;-34-&+*23+*2
37(-(P*13*2>-1()<*8(1-34-8423*20(-34
*&')4<(-37(-,*<(1-45-87*,;)(2-+2;
+;0,31-6*37-;*1+:*,*3*(1-+2;-37(*)
'+)(231]8+)()1@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-1((F1-502;*2>-54)
429>4*2>-84)(-')4<*1*42-54)-;*1+:,(;
87*,;)(2C-67*87-;4(1-243-&((3-A40)
')4>)+&&(-8)*3()*+@

BH!C^$$ DE

D40376+)F

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 358



!!N$$

b40-+2;-/(
U4021(,,*2>

.+>(1-54)-"-'41*3*421-34->4-5)4&
:(*2>-<4,023(()1-34-42(-50,,-3*&(
+2;-42(-'+)3-3*&(-'41*3*421-*2-37(
4)>+2*1+3*421@

K'',*8+23-*1-+-<()A-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42
1((F*2>-+-,+)>(->)+23-9-67*87-*1-243
A40)-'4,*8A@

B!#OC$$$ DE

a+<()*2>

Total 03.  Improving Londoners' Mental Health (5 items) £298,598

04.  London's Environment

!!$G$

K&'7*:*+2-+2;
?('3*,(
U421()<+3*42-I)013

R)4&43(-+&'7*:*+2-+2;-)('3*,(
8421()<+3*42-*2-=42;42-37)40>7
')4<*;*2>-4''4)302*3*(1-34-*2<4,<(
'(4',(-*2-10)<(A-+2;-8421()<+3*42
&+2+>(&(23-+2;-37)40>7
')4<*;*2>-*254)&+3*42C-3)+*2*2>-+2;
+;<*8(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-*1-54)-<()A-1*&*,+)-64)FC
*2-1*&*,+)-+)(+1-45-=42;42C-34-37+3
')4'41(;-*2-+2-+'',*8+3*42-5)4&-+2437()
:4;A@-I7(-,+33()-:4;AC-746(<()C-7+1-+
1*>2*5*8+23-502;*2>-7*134)A-6*37-37(
I)013-+2;-+2-(13+:,*17(;-')(1(28(-*2
=42;42C-34>(37()-6*37-+-;(&4213)+:,(
3)+8F-)(84);-45-;(,*<()*2>-84&&02*3A
40384&(1@-K,3740>7-37(-')4'41(;
')4T(831-+)(-<()A-1*&*,+)C-37*1
+'',*8+3*42-*1-+11(11(;-34-:(-,(11-,*F(,A
45-37(-364-34-;(,*<()-37(-*23(2;(;
403'031-+2;-40384&(1@

B!N#CGYN U?

D40376+)F

!!"$#

K),*2>342
K1148*+3*42

.(-6+23-34-*&')4<(-37(-',+23*2>
*2-40)-,48+,->+);(2-1M0+)(-14-37(
:+)(-+)(+1-45-14*,-+)(-',+23(;-+2;
')4<*;(-+-2+30)+,-:*4;*<()1(
7+:*3+3@

K2-*23()(13*2>-')4T(83-5)4&-+-1&+,,
4)>+2*1+3*42@-I7(-5*2+28*+,-*254)&+3*42
')(1(23(;-54)-37(-80))(23-A(+)-640,;
&+F(-37(-I)013-37(-,+)>(13-1*2>,(-502;()
67*87-*1-243-A40)-'4,*8A@

BHCY$$ DJ

%1,*2>342

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 359



!!!YO

D+<(-I7(-.4),;
U,0:

I4-64)F-6*37-A402>-'(4',(-34
&+'C-8)(+3(-&41+*8-&0)+,1-+2;
(P7*:*3-+-<+)*(3A-45-37(
(2<*)42&(23+,-',+8(1C-+2;-5,4)+
+2;-5+02+-45-`*2>1342-*2
'+)32()17*'-6*37-,48+,-18744,1-+2;
+>(28*(1@

I7*1-')4T(83-')4'41+,-;4(1-243-+;;)(11
(*37()-37(-')*4)*3*(1-4)-40384&(1-45-A40)
\=42;42\1-Q2<*)42&(23\-')4>)+&&(@

B"NC"^^ DJ

`*2>1342

Total 04.  London's Environment (3 items) £164,060

05.  Older Londoners

!!"H!

%)+M*-K1148*+3*42

R)4T(83-6*,,-10''4)3-%)+M*-(,;()1-34
+88(11-*254)&+3*42-+2;-1()<*8(1-34
*&')4<(-37(*)-6(,,:(*2>-S-34-,*<(
*2;('(2;(23,A@-K83*<*3*(1-*28,0;(
403)(+87C-74&(9<*1*3C-+;<48+8A-S
K;<*8(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-1((F1-502;*2>-54)-+
')4T(83-<()A-1*&*,+)-34-42(-502;(;
')(<*401,A--+2;-67()(-37()(-7+1-243
:((2-+-37)((-A(+)-f5+,,46-'()*4;f-+1
)(M0*)(;@

B#^CYNO DE

a+&&()1&*37
S-W0,7+&

!!"GN

=42;42-D4&+,*
U4&&02*3A-K,,*+28(
X=DUKZ

Q,;(),A-D4&+,*1-6*,,-'+)3*8*'+3(
6*37*2-')4>)+&&(1-67*87-*&')4<(
37(*)-'7A1*8+,]&(23+,-7(+,37-+1
;(,*<()(;-:A-'(()1]10''4)3(;
<4,023(()1-;*)(83,A-*2-37(
84&&02*3A@

K'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42-*1-+-1&+,,->)40'
67*87-7+1-1((2-*3\1-*284&(-;(',(3(
8421*;()+:,A-4<()-37(-,+13-5(6-A(+)1@
I7(->)+23-)(M0(13-*1-,*F(,A-34-;40:,(-37(
+220+,-30)24<()C-67*87-*1-243-A40)
'4,*8A@

BN#C^G# DJ

g(67+&

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 360



!!""#

/42+FF+-/4246+)
.(,5+)(-W402;+3*42
X//.WZ

R)4<*;*2>-148*+,C-80,30)+,C-7(+,37A
,*<*2>-+2;-<4,023(()*2>-+83*<*3*(1
54)-<0,2()+:,(-4,;()-'(4',(-674
+)(-+3-)*1F-45-*14,+3*42-+2;
;*1+;<+23+>(@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-')4'41(1-42,A-+-<()A
,46-20&:()-45-:(2(5*8*+)*(1-+2;-37()(-*1
*21055*8*(23-(<*;(28(-45-67A-2(6
')4<*1*42-*1-2((;(;@-/413-45-37(
+'',*8+23-4)>+2*1+3*42\1-(P*13*2>-64)F-*1
6*37-A402>-'(4',(-+2;]4)
3)+*2*2>9)(,+3(;@

B"HCYH$ DE

I46()-a+&,(31

!!"OH

D7)((-R)+T+'+3*
K1148*+3*42-=42;42
V)+287

.(-6+23-*&')4<(-37(-+88(11*:*,*3A
34-40)-8(23)(-54)-37(-(,;(),A
&(&:()1-*2-40)-84&&02*3A-+2;
3741(-6*37-;*1+:*,*3*(1@

W02;1-+)(-140>73-54)-64)F1-34-+-8+)
'+)F*2>-+)(+-6*37403-+2A-)(5()(28(-34
+2-+88(11-',+2-4)-+0;*3@

B!NCY$$ DE

V)(23

Total 05.  Older Londoners (4 items) £132,271

06.  Positive Transitions to Independent Living

!!$Y$

K83*42-42-a(+)*2>
=411

a(+)-34-a(,'-1()<*8(1-')4<*;(
10''4)3-34-gaD-7(+)*2>-+*;-01()1
*2-37(-,48+,-84&&02*3A@

I7(-')4'41+,-*1-34-+11*13-'(4',(-&+2+>(
+2;-&+*23+*2-37(*)-7(+)*2>-+*;1-37)40>7
+0>&(23*2>-(P*13*2>-gaD-1()<*8(1-+3
h0((2-/+)A\1-+2;-D3-E()4>(\1
a41'*3+,1@-.7*,13-02;403(;,A-<+,0+:,(C
34-10''4)3-37*1-+'',*8+3*42-640,;-1(3-+
')(8(;(23-54)-37(-I)013-*2C-(55(83*<(,AC
(+1*2>-')(110)(-42-gaD-1()<*8(1-+2;
6+*3*2>-,*131@

B^"C"O! U?

%1,*2>342

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 361



!!"H"

E)((2,(+5-I)013-=3;

I4-'+A-1+,+)*(1-45-'+)3-3*&(-13+55C
13+3*42()AC-3)+*2*2>-X'+*;-13+55-S
<4,023(()1ZC-3)+<(,-(P'(21(1-45-40)
<4,023(()1-+2;-10''4)3-45-40)
8,*(231@

K-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42-)(M0(13*2>-+-<()A
,+)>(-10&@-%3-*1-243-A40)-'4,*8A-34-+6+);
1087->)+231@

B!^HC"!# DE

.+,37+&
W4)(13

!!"!!

/+F(;+-.(+<()
R)4T(83

Q&',4A-+-D3)+3(>*8-J(<(,4'&(23
/+2+>()-34-(2+:,(-(P'+2;*2>
80))(23-1()<*8(-,(<(,1C-;(<(,4'-+
13)+3(>*8-:01*2(11-',+2-+2;
*&',(&(23-+-502;)+*1*2>-13)+3(>A@

I7(-')4'41+,-*1-54)-+-;(<(,4'&(23+,
'413-6*37*2-+-10:1*;*+)A-45-+-&+T4)
7401*2>-+1148*+3*42-+2;-37(-64)F-*1-243
1055*8*(23,A-54801(;-42-)(1(33,(&(23
64)F-6*37-(P9455(2;()1C-37()(54)(-5+*,*2>
34-&((3-37(-I)013\1-')*4)*3*(1@

BYYC^O$ U?

a+8F2(A

!!"NG

g+3*42+,
J(<(,4'&(23-I(+&
54)-%28,01*42-XgJI*Z

I4-10''4)3-A402>-'(4',(-6*37
,(+)2*2>-+2;-+;;*3*42+,-;*1+:*,*3*(1
X+2;-37(*)-5+&*,*(1Z-*2-3)+21*3*42-34
7+<(-874*8(-+2;-8423)4,-*2-&4<*2>
34-*2;('(2;(23-,*<*2>@

I7*1-+'',*8+3*42-*1-5)4&-+2-4)>+2*1+3*42
:+1(;-4031*;(-=42;42C-6*37-+2-*23(23*42
34-64)F-*2-'+)32()17*'-6*37
4)>+2*1+3*421-*2-364-=42;42-:4)40>71@-
I7(-'43(23*+,-'+)32()1-7+<(-243-:((2
*;(23*5*(;C-24)-*1-37()(-(P',+2+3*42-45
64)F*2>-+))+2>(&(231-4)-45-67A-,48+,
')4<*;()1-840,;-243-;4-37*1-64)F@--I7(
20&:()1-45-'(4',(-64)F(;-6*37-+''(+)
,46-*2-)(,+3*42-34-37(-84131C-+2;-37(
*23(2;(;-40384&(1-+)(-243-50,,A-8,(+)@

B!"$CY"H Lh/

[031*;(
=42;42

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 362



!!$!Y

R=%KD-?(1(33,(&(23

I46+);1-37(-1+,+)A-84131-45-+-50,,
3*&(-Q&',4A&(23-U+1(64)F()-34
')4<*;(-(&',4A&(23-+;<*8(-+2;
10''4)3-34-(P9455(2;()1-+2;
(P9')*142()1-34-10''4)3-37(*)
)(*23(>)+3*42-+2;-3)+21*3*42-:+8F
*234-64)F@

.7*,13-37*1-*1-+2-*&'4)3+23-+)(+-45-64)FC
37(-4)>+2*1+3*42\1-,+8F-45-5)((-)(1()<(1
+2;-45-+-)(1()<(1-'4,*8A-&(+2-37+3
37()(-*1-+2-*21055*8*(23-5*2+28*+,-8017*42
34-02;()'*2-+->)+23-45-37*1-18+,(-+2;
;0)+3*42@

B!"$C$G$ U?

V)(23

!!!$H

?0>:A-W443:+,,
K1148*+3*42

R)4<*;*2>-3)+*2*2>-+2;
M0+,*5*8+3*421-54)-174)3-3()&
')*142()1-+2;-&(234)(;-)0>:A
',+8(&(231-0'42-)(,(+1(@-
R)4<*;*2>-24298)*&*2+,-+1148*+3(1
+2;-24298)*&*2+,-+83*<*3*(1-0'42
)(,(+1(@

.7*,13-37(-')4'41(;-')4T(83-640,;-:(
(,*>*:,(-54)-A40)-8421*;()+3*42C-37(
+'',*8+23-:4;A-*1-37(-455*8*+,-87+)*3A-45
37(-?0>:A-_2*42->4<()2*2>-:4;A-+2;
)(8(*<(1-+,&413-+,,-45-*31-1*>2*5*8+23
*284&(XB!#/Z-5)4&-37+3-4)>+2*1+3*42@
g4-8+1(-*1-&+;(-+1-34-67A-(P3()2+,
502;*2>-*1-)(M0*)(;-54)-37*1-')4T(83@

B^OC!$$ DE

?*87&42;

Total 06.  Positive Transitions to Independent Living (6 items) £652,250

07.  Strengthening the Third Sector

!!"NH

U%Ib@U[//C--+
')4T(83-45-d4,023+)A
K83*42-.(13&*213()

I4-;(<(,4'->4<()2+28(-+2;
5*2+28*+,-1F*,,1-8+'+8*3A-*2-U*3A]U*3A
W)*2>(-37*);-1(834)->)40'1-:A
>*<*2>-37(&-+88(11-34-1F*,,(;C
&43*<+3(;-+2;-3)+*2(;-<4,023(()1@

I7*1-*1-+-<()A-(P'(21*<(-')4'41+,C-6*37
42,A-+-')4'4)3*42-45-37(-:(2(5*8*+)*(1-*2
37(-U*3A@-I7(-)(&+*2;()-+)(-*2
2(*>7:40)*2>-:4)40>71-67*87-13)+A1
4234-37(-3())*34)A-45-437()-UdD1@

B!Y"CNH$ DE

U*3A

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 363



!!!^#

/4)(-I7+2-E4,;

I4-')('+)(-+-84&')(7(21*<(
(<+,0+3*42-45-37(-*&'+83-37+3
870)87-;(24&*2+3*421-+2;
87+)*3*(1-7+<(-7+;-*2-(2>+>*2>
37(*)-84&&02*3*(1-*2-37(-[,A&'*8
>+&(1@

K-842501*2>-+'',*8+3*42C-67()(-37(
3*&*2>-45-37(-)(M0(13-640,;-&+F(-+2A
>)+23-)(3)41'(83*<(-+2;-37()(54)(
*2(,*>*:,(@

B"#C$$$ DE

%1,*2>342

!!"^!

D4&+,*-R+)(231
%2*3*+3*<(

W)4&-D('3(&:()-"$!"C-D4&+,*
R+)(231-%2*3*+3*<(-6*,,-2((;-502;*2>
34-84<()-)(23-45-2(6-84&&02*3A
')(&*1(1-X80))(23-)(23-5)((
')(&*1(1-;0(-34-:(-;(&4,*17(;Z
+2;-:+,+28(-45-3034)-84131@

K-1&+,,-4)>+2*1+3*42-1((F*2>-+-,+)>(
>)+23-67*87-640,;-&4)(-37+2-;40:,(
37(-+220+,-*284&(-9-67*87-*1-243-A40)
'4,*8A@

B!HHCN$N DE

E)((26*87

Total 07.  Strengthening the Third Sector (3 items) £351,643

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$9.-)O,$PQF$+-"3,R SFTUQVTWXG

P
age 364



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications – Growing Localities 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to those applications on your 

Growing Localities programme which have been subsequently 

withdrawn by the applicant, or lapsed due to additional information 

not forthcoming. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 

 
  
Withdrawn Applications 

 

 

London Children's Flower 

Society 

“The Society would like to offer free 

vegetable seeds to all schools choosing to 

enter our Summer gardening competitions 

in 2013.” 
 

On becoming aware that the application 

failed to fully address the criteria of this 

programme the organisation withdrew the 

application to reconsider.  

 
 

Total Withdrawn Applications:   1           
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 
 

Contact: 

Sandra Davidson, Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3185 

Email:  sandra.davidson@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Date report written:  22/08/12 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 365



Page 366

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Grants Approved under Delegated Authority 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to those applications which have 

been approved under delegated authority either by the Chairman and 

Deputy Chairman or by the Chief Grants Officer. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 

 
By the Chief Grants Officer: 

 

 

Organisation      Amount and Purpose of Grant 
 

 
City Temple £2,160 for an access audit of City Temple. 

 

St John's Church, 

Deptford 

£900 for an access audit and design 

appraisal. 

 

Old Vic Theatre Trust £4,750 for the costs of commissioning an 

independent access audit. 

 

  

 

By the Chairman and Deputy Chairman 
 

 

Training Ship Broadsword 

Sea Training Corps 

£24,000 towards the costs of providing 

disabled access provision, subject to the 

balance of costs being raised from other 

sources; and planning permission being 

obtained. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 367



St John's Church Notting 

Hill 

£25,000 towards access improvements at 

St John's Notting Hill. 

 

 

One-To-One (Enfield) £23,600 over two years (2 x £11,500) for 

the salary of a p/t (12hpw) Sports 

Development Worker plus other costs to 

provide support for people with learning 

disabilities to participate in integrated 

sports activities. 

 

 

Rewrite £24,360 over two years (2 x £12,180) 

towards the costs of delivering REACT 

programme, subject to not being the 

organisation's largest single funder in year 

2. 

 

 

SSBA Community Trust £18,380 towards English Language and 

sewing classes twice a week for isolated 
women, for one year. 

 
 

Fowler Newsam Hall Trust £10,000 towards the capital cost of creating 

a dedicated project office and counselling / 

meeting space. 
 

 

Otesha Project UK £11,950 for a third and final year's support 
to continue and expand the Change Projects 

Programme working with young people, 
subject to receipt of a satisfactory 

monitoring report for Year 2 of the previous 

grant. 

 

 

African Cultural 
Association - Barnet 

£24,000 over three years (3 x £8,000) 
towards the costs of healthy lifestyle 

sessions for older African and Caribbean 

people in Barnet, subject to not being the 

organisation's largest funder in Years 2 & 3. 

 

 

Rosetta Life £23,900 towards the provision of 

movement classes for stroke survivors 

within a community setting, for one year. 

 

Page 368



PACT (Parents and 

Abducted Children 

Together) 

£20,000 for 1 year towards the costs of a 

strategic post raising awareness about 

missing and abducted children in London. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk, Principal Grants Officer 
Tel:  020 7332 3712 
Email:  stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Date report written:  13/09/12 

Page 369



Page 370

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust  27th September 2012             

 

Subject: 

Strategic Literacy Initiative in Islington 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary  

 

This paper proposes a strategic literacy initiative, aimed at 

measurably improving literacy results in a ‘flagship’ primary 

school in Islington. 

It proposes a partnership between City Bridge Trust, 

Volunteer Reading Help, Islington Education Department, an 

Islington primary school and the Evening Standard.  It would 
be part of the Evening Standard’s ‘Get London Reading’ 

campaign, and would be widely publicised. 

 

Recommendation 

That you approve a grant of £72,300 over three years 
(£23,400; £24,100; £24,800) to Volunteer Reading Help 

towards the costs of a strategic literacy initiative in Islington, 
to be charged against your Strategic Initiatives budget for 

2012/13. 

Main Report 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 

1.1 This paper proposes a strategic partnership aimed at improving 

literacy in an Islington primary school, which has London-wide 

implications.  The partnership would comprise Islington Education 

Department, Volunteer Reading Help (VRH), a primary school yet 

to be confirmed and the Evening Standard.  The latter has led the 

highly successful ‘Get London Reading’ campaign which has 

achieved notable results, and its flagship success has been a 

collaboration with VRH in St Mary’s Primary School in Battersea.  

The Evening Standard published regular stories on progress 

achieved by the children, which leveraged additional funding and 

donations in kind, such as additional computers and software for St 

Mary’s. 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 371



2.0 Background  

  

2.1 For several months, the Chief Grants Officer has been discussing 

the need for and value of a strategic initiative which would address 

a major London issue and at the same time demonstrate the City 

of London’s commitment to supporting charitable activity, 

particularly in a neighbouring borough.   

 

2.2 Following meetings with the Town Clerk, Director of Community & 

Children’s Services and Director of Press & Public Relations, it was 

agreed that the Chief Grants Officer would explore the feasibility of 

working with the Evening Standard on its ‘Get London Reading’ 

campaign.  The Evening Standard’s delivery partner is VRH. 

 

3.0 The ‘Get London Reading’ Campaign 
 

3.1 As a response to the shocking statistic that one in four children 

leave London’s primary schools unable to read properly, the 

Evening Standard launched its campaign in 2011, joining forces 
with VRH, which provides specialist reading volunteers to work 

intensively in under-performing schools or those finding children’s 
reading development particularly challenging.  The campaign raised 

£10m, which in particular helped VRH recruit and train hundreds of 

volunteers who were deployed in schools across London.   
 
3.2 The Standard adopted one particular school, St Mary’s in Battersea, 

and 25 reading volunteers worked with the weakest students for 
one year.  A record 91% of St Mary’s pupils aged 11 years passed 

English and Maths key stage 2, achieving at least the level 4 

national standard, compared to a mere 52% the previous year. 

 

4.0 How the Model Works 
 

4.1 VRH pairs each reading helper with at least three children in a 

school, who they visit twice a week, spending 30 minutes with each 

child on a one-to-one basis. 

 

4.2 The reading helpers provide reliable and consistent support by 

staying with the same three children for typically three to four 

terms.  Over this time they build up a rapport with the children and 

work at the child’s pace.  This in turn allows the child to build their 

reading confidence and then make progress. 

 

4.3 To aid their sessions, VRH provides a box of books and games for 

each reading helper; and they provide a friendly and safe learning 

environment for the children. Each session is outside the 

classroom, away from peer pressure, where each child can become 

a successful reader, over time. 

 

Page 372



4.4 For many children, their reading helper provides a consistent role 

model in their life. 

 

5.0 Replicating the Model 
 

5.1 Building on the success of St Mary’s, it is proposed to replicate the 

model which now has a sound evidence base. Whilst the Standard 

would not be able to guarantee the same exposure as with St 

Mary’s, it will be able to announce the replication of the model and 

publicise the City of London Corporation’s support for the Islington 

initiative.  

   

6.0 Project Aims 
 

• To annually improve 75 children’s reading ability at a primary 
school in Islington, using 25 volunteers from across the 

borough, thus driving up overall achievement at the selected 

school.  The school would be selected by Islington Council, in 

collaboration with City Bridge Trust, the CoL Director of 

Community & Children’s Services and VRH.  It would be a 
school that is: currently under-performing in this area (for 

example, only 50-60% of pupils obtaining the required 
literacy standard); has a school leadership team that is 

positive about such a large scale injection of volunteers and 
the impact that will have; and is willing to take part in media 

activities.  

 

Objectives 
 

• To increase the number of children in the selected 
primary school achieving the required standard in 

reading within 2 years of starting the project. 

 

• To use this project as a pilot to expand the VRH 
scheme into more primary schools in Islington. 

 

• To demonstrate the impact and value of the VRH’s 
approach to schools and the Local Authority so they 

contribute in the long-term. 

 

7.0 Monitoring and Evaluation 
 

7.1 The following information is gathered on each child receiving the 

service: 

 

• Gender 
• Ethnicity 
• Year Group 
• Reason selected for programme 
• Whether the child has English as their first language 

Page 373



• Whether the child is subject to a care order 
• Whether the child is eligible for free school meals 
• Reading level at start of programme 
• Reading sub-levels progress in the previous school year (to 
benchmark) 

• Reading levels at termly intervals (to check progress) 
• Date started programme 
• Date finished programme (when finished) 

 

7.2 Schools enter details of the children at the start of the programme 

and then update reading level data on a termly basis. Information 

on prior progress allows VRH to provide a benchmark from which to 

measure a child’s progress during the year in which they work with 

their reading helper. It also enables VRH to put their progress in 

context.  

 

7.3 Since the launch of this new evaluation system, schools have input 

data for 2,495 children. From the information collected to date, the 
average progress of a child in the year before referral to a VRH 

reading helper was just 0.1 reading sub levels. The national target 

for each child is to progress by 2 reading sub levels.  

  
7.4 After starting work with a reading helper schools are asked to input 

information about a child's progress on a termly basis. From the 
data collected to date over two terms, VRH has seen an average 

improvement of 1.6 reading levels. It must, of course, be 

remembered that VRH is at an early stage of assessing its impact. 

However, the results it is seeing so far are very encouraging and 
indicative of the success of VRH's support. A full academic analysis 

of VRH's impact will be available towards the end of 2012. 
 

7.5 A further evaluation is being conducted with Oxford Brookes 

University, where attitudinal outline data is being collected which 

will capture the view and progress of a representative sample of 

children at the beginning and end of the academic year. 

 

8.0 Why Islington? 
 

8.1 VRH targets its support to work in the top 25% of the most 

disadvantaged regions in the country, in areas which see the 

highest levels of deprivation and lowest literacy levels, thereby 

ensuring that support is delivered to those children who need it 
most. 

 

8.2 According to the End Child Poverty campaign, 43% of children in 

Islington live in families who are out of work and on benefits.  Both 

North and South Islington fall into the top twenty of constituencies 

with the highest levels of child poverty (2011) across the UK, with 

Islington South and Finsbury experiencing 46% and Islington North 

40%. In terms of reading attainment, Islington currently has a 

Page 374



higher percentage of children below level 4 in reading at key stage 

2 (18%) than the average for England (16%). 

 

8.3 Several Islington primary schools serve as feeder schools for the 

City of London Academy in Islington.  If more of the Academy’s 

Year 7 students started from a higher literacy and numeracy 

baseline, then GCSE and A levels are likely to show improvement.    

 

 
9.0 Proposed Timelines 
 

9.1 If you approve this proposal, the timetable would be as follows: 

(VRH would identify a school within Islington Council by end of 

September 2012 and launch the project within that school in 

November 2012) 

 
 
 
 

Milestones      Proposed dates  
Start publicity to recruit reading helpers Sept-Oct 2012 

Finalise flagship school and sign Service 
Level Agreements 

Sept-Oct 2012 

Interview potential reading helpers Sept-Nov 2012; May-Jul 2013 (for 
attrition after year 1) 

Train reading helpers Oct-Nov 2012; May-Jul 2013 (for 
attrition after year 1) 

Place reading helpers in flagship school Nov 2012 

Gather data on attainment outcomes 
termly basis  

Nov 2012/Jan 2013/May 2013/Jul 
2013/Sept 2013 

Conduct questionnaires for attitudinal 
outcomes 

Nov 2012 and June 2013 

Review output progress for year 1  Aug 2013 

Overall report on data to review outcome 
progress for year 1   

Nov-Dec 2013 

Years 2 and 3 would follow a similar pattern  
 

 

 

10.0 Budget 
 

10.1 VRH estimates it will cost £72,327 to initiate a new ‘flagship’ school 

for three years.  This will cover the full costs for 25 volunteer 

readers, supporting 75 pupils per year for three years.  This 

support will be targeted at the pupils most in need. A detailed 

budget based on VRH’s current cost per child of £312 is set out 

below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 375



Breakdown of expenditure 
Year 

one 
Year two Year three Total 

Salary and Staff Costs £16,950 £17,459 £17,982 £52,391 

Travel and Subsistence £1,650 £1,700 £1,750 £5,100 

Training (non-salary costs) £300 £309 £318 £927 

Recruitment (non-salary costs) £150 £155 £159 £464 

Consultancy and Contract £150 £155 £159 £464 

Other Services (evaluation and 

resources) £225 £232 £239 £695 

Office Expenses £1,200 £1,236 £1,273 £3,709 

IT and Support Costs £450 £464 £477 £1,391 

Premises Costs £1,725 £1,777 £1,830 £5,332 

Legal/Professional* £450 £464 £477 £1,391 

Fundraising and marketing £150 £155 £159 £464 

TOTAL £23,400 £24,102 £24,825 £72,327 

 
 

 

10.2 If you approve this initiative, the total costs of £72,300 would be 

charged against your budget of £747,500 for Strategic Initiatives 2012-
2013.  You have already approved the following strategic initiatives (see 

table below).  If you agree this initiative, it would leave a balance of 
£204,590 remaining for 2012-2013. 

 
 Committee 

date 

£ 

Quinquennial Review Horizon Scanning 16/02/2012 50,000 

Social Investment Specialist Role 15/03/2012 50,000 

Learning & Sharing Strategy 26/04/2012 124,000 

Reading Agency 26/04/2012 50,000 

Beacon Award 26/04/2012 32,500 

Greening Third Sector 26/04/2012 75,000 

Lord Mayor's Show 31/05/2012 24,110 

The Lord Mayor’s Appeal (TBC) 18/07/2012 65,000 

For this meeting:   

 Strategic Literacy Initiative (to be approved) 27/09/2012    72,300 

  Total 542,910 

Sum available as 5% annual WwL grants 

budget 

  747,500 

Balance remaining   204,590 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 376



 

11.0 Consultation 
 

11.1 The Director of Public Relations and the Director of 

Community and Children’s Services have been consulted over 

the preparation of this paper and they support the proposal. 

 

 

12.0 Conclusion 
 

12.1 VRH’s approach is effective, simple and is supported by a 

clear evidence-base.  Fundamental to VRH’s service delivery 

are its specialist reading volunteers.  The Evening Standard 

as its media partner has done much to raise awareness of the 

importance of improving literacy; and this initiative is an 

opportunity to meet real need and to ensure that the City of 

London Corporation gets due recognition for its role in 

tackling disadvantage in a neighbouring borough. 

 

 
 

 
Recommendation 

 That you approve a grant of £72,300 over three years 
(£23,400; £24,100; £24,800) to Volunteer Reading Help 

towards the costs of a strategic literacy initiative in Islington, 

to be charged against your Strategic Initiatives budget for 

2012/13. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3711 
Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 04/09/2012    

Page 377



Page 378

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committees: Dates: 

Policy & Resources Committee 

City Bridge Trust 

Finance Committee 

Court of Common Council 

 

6
th
 September 2012 

27
th
 September 2012 

2
nd
 October 2012 

25
th
 October 2012 

Subject: 

Get Young People Working – The Youth Offer 
Public 

 

Report of: 

The Chief Grants Officer, City Bridge Trust 
For Decision 

 

Summary 

 

This paper proposes a new initiative “Get Young People Working – 

The Youth Offer”, to help tackle the growing problem of rising 

numbers of young people not in employment, education or training 

(NEETs). This is a problem common to all London Boroughs. 

 

Each of the 32 London local authorities would be invited to apply for 

a grant of up to £100,000 over a 2 year period.  This grant would be to 

support the costs of a voluntary sector partner with experience of 

working with the most disadvantaged young people. 

 

A detailed specification with clear outcomes (1,000 young people 

across London accessing employment or apprenticeships) would be 

developed and each applicant London local authority would need to 

demonstrate how it meets the specification.  Decisions on grant 

awards would be made by City Bridge Trust Committee. 

 

Any grant awarded would be additional to publicly funded 

programmes.  It could not be used to replace public expenditure cuts.  

 

Recommendations 

 

a) That, subject to the concurrence of the Finance Committee, The 

City Bridge Trust Committee and the Court of Common 

Council,  a budget of £3.28m be approved from income in 

Bridge House Estates for “Get Young People Working – The 

Youth Offer”, a London-wide initiative tackling youth 

unemployment on the basis set out in this report; 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 379



 

b) That, of the pot of £3.28m, £3.2m be allocated to  supplement 

the grant-making capability of the City Bridge Trust for 

expenditure in the current and future financial years, with the 

balance of £80,000 being utilised for additional administrative 

costs and to supplement the City Bridge Trust’s local risk 

budget for expenditure in the current and future financial years; 

 

c) That the Town Clerk be authorised to approve the detailed 
specification and criteria for the initiative, in consultation with 

the Chairmen and Deputy Chairmen of the Policy & Resources 

and City Bridge Trust Committees. 
 

 

Main Report 

 

1. Introduction 

At the request of the Town Clerk, a cross-departmental working party, led 

by the Director of Community and Children’s Services, was set up in 

May 2012, to explore how the City of London Corporation might provide 

a constructive response to the growing London-wide issue of rising 

numbers of young people not in employment, education or training 

(NEETs). The need for a new initiative was well established and this 

paper sets out its rationale, aims and objectives. 

 

2. This paper has the support of Members of the Resource Allocation Sub 

Committee and its contents were discussed when they met informally at 

their Awayday meeting on 6
th
 July 2012. 

 

3. Background 

The number of young people referred to as NEETs is growing.  The 

figure of 10% nationally for the 16-18 cohort is usually cited but in some 

London boroughs it might be as high as 20%.  In Quarter 1 of 2012, there 

were 125,000 people between the ages of 16-24 in the NEETS category, 

in London.  This figure represents 14% of all those aged 16-24 in London 

(Source: Department for Education NEET Statistics – Quarterly Brief – 

Quarter 1 2012, May 2012).  The majority of these were in the 19-24 

year-old bracket. 

 

4. Despite over 12 years of policy attention and investment, the problems 

facing disadvantaged groups of young people have not been overcome.  

The situation has worsened considerably since the recession. 

 

Page 380



 

5. The consequences of long-term unemployment are both personally 

devastating for the young people whose lives are blighted and for London 

as a whole.  Long-term unemployment can lead to mental and physical ill 

health and debt, all of which have economic as well as societal 

consequences.  In pockets within the capital, there are families where 

there are three generations of worklessness; a cycle which is extremely 

difficult to break. 

 

6. The City of London’s Response 

 It has never been more important that the City of London Corporation 

plays a leading role in helping tackle the NEETs issue.  The City 

Corporation, through its charity, City Bridge Trust, is well-positioned to 

assist every London local authority in helping address some of the 

problems facing NEETs locally, through a new grants initiative, 

additional to its published programmes and priorities.  

  

      7. The new, London-wide initiative would build on the considerable amount 

of work done by the City across a range of its departments including  

Community and Children’s Services, Economic Development and 

through the grantmaking of City Bridge Trust. These initiatives include 

apprenticeships, internships, support to Academies, mentoring, work 

experience, skills for work and its support to City businesses developing 

Corporate Social Responsibility programmes. 

 

8. Whilst the Coalition Government and Mayor of London are developing a 

range of initiatives to address unemployment and the growing numbers of 

NEETs, much more could be done locally. The City can play a useful role  

in helping London’s Local Authorities build on existing programmes by 

providing extra support to some of their most hard to reach young people. 

The City Bridge Trust, with its extensive experience of funding London’s 

third sector, believes that voluntary organisations can also play a 

significant role in complementing existing programmes by providing 

additional specialist support in partnership with Local Authorities or other 

statutory providers. 

 

9. “Get Young People Working – The Youth Offer”                                                                

Every Borough has NEETs and this proposal has the clear aim of 

supporting London’s 32 Local Authorities in reducing the numbers of 

young people not in employment, education and training with the goal of 

helping 1,000 NEETs into jobs or apprenticeships over 2 years, making a 

tangible difference to the lives of disadvantaged young people in London 

by improving their employability, skills and access to jobs. 

 

Page 381



 

10.  It is proposed that every London local authority is invited to apply for a 

£100,000 grant which would build on existing work training or 

apprenticeship schemes for NEETs. The £100,000 would be additional to 

any existing programme and could not be used to top up underfunded 

government programmes. The ‘grant’ could not be used as substitute for 

posts/activities cut as a result of Public Expenditure reductions. 

 

11. This additional funding would be applied to activities/programmes which 

can demonstrate that extra resources will contribute to young people 

gaining jobs or apprenticeships. 

 

12. Applicants would need to meet specified criteria and demonstrate how 

they will provide good outcomes.  These will be produced in consultation 

with the Town Clerk, Chief Grants Officer, Director of Community & 

Children’s Services, Director of Economic Development and Director of 

Press & Public Relations. 

 

13. Differentiated Needs 

  NEETs are not a homogenous group and the differentiated nature of those 

regarded as NEET and the fact that their circumstances are often rooted in 

local factors, requires local authorities and civil society organisations to 

develop locally sensitive and flexible strategies. The third sector has a 

vital role to play in connecting with hard to reach groups and providing 

specialist services. 

 

14. The third sector’s reputation of working with single parents, young 

people at risk of offending or ex-offenders, young people with disabilities 

or those with substance misuse issues makes it well-positioned to add 

value to existing employment training by ensuring that the young people 

with the greatest need do not “fall through the net”. 

 

15. Partnership Working 

 A ‘one size fits all’ approach cannot meet the needs of all NEETs, so we 

would expect the applicant local authority to work in conjunction with a 

voluntary sector partner.  The £100,000 grant offer is to support the cost 

of delivering the local initiative to meet the agreed outcomes. 

 

16. View of London Councils 

 During preliminary consultation with London Councils’ officers  leading 

on 14-19 activity and economic development, the initiative received a 

warm welcome and was thought to be a good strategic fit with the current 

larger scale youth unemployment projects such as the Youth Contract and 

the Mayor of London’s aims.  “Get Young People Working – The Youth 

Page 382



 

Offer” emphasises localism, encouraging each authority to understand 

and respond to their unique local needs. The voluntary and community 

sector is vital in developing a real local approach. 

 

17. London Councils’ officers have indicated that they would wish to 

engage with “Get Young People Working – The Youth Offer”; both in 

communicating its message and advising on its implementation; and, 

subject to Member approval, the necessary work will be undertaken with 

London Councils to harness their advice and support. 

 

18.  Consultation 

 The Town Clerk, Chamberlain, Director of Community and Children’s 

Services, Director of Economic Development and Director of Press & 

Public Relations have been consulted in the preparation of this report 

and their views have been incorporated. 

 

 19.  The Process 

If your Committee supports this initiative, it would be administered by    

the City Bridge Trust.  Terms of reference and criteria will be drafted for 

approval by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Chairmen and 

Deputy Chairmen of the Policy & Resources and City Bridge Trust 

Committees.  Each of the 32 London local authorities would be invited 

to apply for a grant by submitting a proposal which would have to 

demonstrate that it measures up to the detailed specification.  The Chief 

Grants Officer and other CoL colleagues would assess the proposals and 

report to the City Bridge Trust Committee for their decision. 

 

20. Neighbouring Boroughs and Central London Forward 

 In addition to the “Get Young People Working – The Youth Offer” 

initiative, Members of the Resource Allocation Sub Committee at the 

informal Awayday meeting considered that there was a further need to 

explore how CoL could do more with its partners and neighbouring 

boroughs and your officers will report to you on how this might be 

progressed, later this year. 

 

21. Resources 

 The costs of the “Get Young People Working – The Youth Offer” at 

£100,000 per borough, amount to £3.2m in 2012-13.  The additional 

assessment and administrative costs require an uplift in the City Bridge 

Trust’s local risk budget 2012/13, estimated at £80,000; making a total 

of £3.28m.  The Chamberlain has advised that there is sufficient 

headroom within Bridge House Estates to cover these additional costs. 

 

Page 383



 

22. Communications 

 If you approve the approach outlined in this paper, then it would offer a 

significant opportunity for CoL to demonstrate its leadership in, and 

commitment to, tackling one of London’s most intractable problems.  As 

a substantial initiative, this is likely to attract favourable publicity at a 

time when it is much needed. This initiative meets fully the City of 

London’s communications priority “supporting London’s 

communities”. 

 

23. Conclusion 

 “Get Young People Working – the Youth Offer”, is a significant 

opportunity for changing the lives of the 1,000 young Londoners, 

amongst whom are the most socially excluded and disadvantaged in the 

capital.  Working collaboratively with London Councils, participating 

London local authorities and the third sector, it would demonstrate 

CoL’s commitment to partnership working in helping address the 

NEETs issue much more effectively than can be done by using any 

single agency alone. 

 

  

  

 

 
Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3711 

Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 384



 

Committees: Dates: 

Policy and Resources Committee 
City Bridge Trust Committee 
Investment Committee 
Court of Common Council  

6th September 2012 
27th September 2012 
Delegated Authority 
25th October 2012 

  

Subject: 

City of London Corporation's Social Investment Fund 
Governance and Operating Arrangements 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 
For Decision 

 

Summary 
 

At its meeting on the 24th May, the Court of Common Council agreed 
to designate £20million from Bridge House Estates for investments in 
activities that produce both social and financial returns at a rate not 
less than the average interest rate earned on the City’s cash holdings. 
The proposed designation for this is the City of London Corporation’s 
Social Investment Fund. 

The Fund involves a new approach and requires careful balancing of 
both financial and social returns. This requires specific and dedicated 
scrutiny and decision-taking and it is proposed that the terms of 
reference of the Investment Committee be amended to enable a Social 
Investment Board to be established for this purpose. The new Board 
will have the power to make decisions, where funds have been 
designated for this purpose, in the field of social investment and will 
sit alongside the Financial and Property Investment Boards. 

The Fund will be administered by the Chief Grants Officer and her 
team for the City Bridge Trust and all investments proposed will be 
channelled through the City Bridge Trust. Outline proposals will be 
reviewed monthly by the City Bridge Trust Grants Unit and the 
Chamberlain’s Department which will filter out proposals falling 
outside the approved criteria. A combined report from Chamberlain’s 
Department and the Chief Grants Officer for the City Bridge Trust 
will be provided for the Social Investment Board’s decisions, together 
with any external assessment and/or applicants’ prospectuses. 

Recommendations 

• That, subject to the concurrence of the Court of Common 
Council,  approval be given to the  aims and objectives, outline 
investment strategy and governance arrangements (including 
altering the Terms of Reference of the Investment Committee) 

Agenda Item 12

Page 385



 

as set out in this report for the future management of the City of 
London Corporation’s Social Investment Fund activities; 

• That  the Post-Implementation Review Working Party be 
advised of the proposed governance arrangements in order to 
inform its work; and 

• The Town Clerk be authorised to make any necessary 
adjustments to Standing Orders to reflect the arrangements 
recommended in this report. 

 

Main Report 

1. Introduction 

This paper has the support of members of the Resource Allocation Sub-

Committee and its contents were discussed when it met informally at its 

Away Day Meeting on 6th July 2012. 

 

2. Background 

At its meeting on 24 May, the Court of Common Council agreed to 
designate £20 million from Bridge House Estates for investments in 
activities that produce both social and financial returns. The proposed 
designation for this is the City of London Corporation’s Social 
Investment Fund (hereinafter the Fund). It will provide a significant 
opportunity to maximise the social impact of the City Corporation’s 
investments. 

 
3. Over the past two years, the City Corporation has done much to raise 

awareness of the importance of social investment and to advance the 
social investment agenda.  In July 2011, the CoL published its influential 
report “Investor Perspectives on Social Enterprise Financing” which 
explored what more could be done to attract the talent and resources of 
investors who wish to generate both social and financial returns.   

 
4. As a response to this report, City Bridge Trust held a series of master 

classes communicating both the value of and the challenges involved in 
social investment.  In July 2012 the Lord Mayor hosted the third of these 
master classes at a breakfast for private wealth advisers, which was 
chaired by the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee.  The 
wide-ranging discussion highlighted the need to secure a wider and 
deeper investor base for social investment and the importance of 
leadership in this nascent market. 

 

Page 386



 

5.  In April 2012, the Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee 
chaired an Action Group on Social Investment as part of the Prime 
Minister’s “Giving Summit”. 

 
      6. Social Investment is high on the coalition Government’s agenda and the 

establishment of Big Society Capital (which CoL supports by paying its 
premises cost) will further accelerate the social investment market. 

 
7. The Policy & Resources and the City Bridge Trust Committees earlier 

this year approved the establishment of a dedicated Social Investment 
Advisor role for one year, to advise the Economic Development Office on 
the production of a City Corporation 5-year Social Investment Strategy. 

 
8. The City Corporation is well placed to play a major role in the 

development of the social investment market.  The Fund will demonstrate 
“by doing” the value of such investments. 

 

9. Aims 

 The Fund will aim to achieve a financial return at a rate not less than the 
average interest rate earned on the City’s cash holdings and a 
demonstrable social benefit. It will help position the City of London as a 
leader in social investment, develop London as a global centre for social 
investment and by so doing, help to grow the market. 

 

10. Objectives 

The Fund has two objectives: 

• To provide loan finance, quasi-equity and equity that provides 
development and risk capital to organisations working towards 
charitable ends or with social purpose 

• To help develop the social investment market  
 

11. The Fund will consider both direct investments (providing returnable   
funds to organisations which pursue charitable, community or social 
objectives) and indirect investments (into funds managed by others in 
order to reach a greater number of charities and social enterprises). 

 
 
12. Geographical Focus 

In line with the Corporation’s commitment to build the UK social 
investment market it is recommended that most investments made from 
the Fund be allocated towards work that benefits communities in the 
UK. 

 

Page 387



 

13.   It is proposed that the Fund will seek to allocate: 
 

• 60% of its total value to benefit London beneficiaries; 

•  30% of its total value to benefit UK-based beneficiaries 

• 10% of its total value to benefit overseas beneficiaries  
 

        14.     Investment Strategy 
            To maintain its real value, the Fund will seek a return across the 

portfolio that at least matches the Office of National Statistics’ CPI 
inflation rate (2.4% as of June 2012). 

 
  15. Notwithstanding basic key criteria as proposed above, it is suggested 

that eligibility is kept sufficiently wide-ranging to incorporate the most 
suitable opportunities arising in this nascent field. 

 
   16. Where individual investments are expected to produce a lower 

financial return than the CPI inflation rate, they will only be considered 
if there is a significant case that the social outcomes achieved 
compensate for the loss of income. The financial return on individual 
investments will, in all cases, match or exceed the average interest rate 
earned on the City’s cash holdings. 
 

   17. In order to preserve capital and develop expertise, first investments are 
likely to be in instruments offering lower risk, for instance, secured 
loans and short term bonds. The target dispersal rate in the first year 
will be £2 million with a higher dispersal rate in subsequent years once 
the appraisal and administration process is well established.  

 
    18.     Investment terms 

                   On approval of an investment, the Comptroller & City Solicitor’s   
Department will negotiate a binding contract with the investee to 
protect the Fund’s position. 

 
   19.    Proposed Governance 

The City Corporation’s investments, both property and non-property, 
are managed through the Investment Committee.  
 

   20. Although it will form part of the City Corporation’s overall investment 
activity, social investment involves a new approach and requires 
careful balancing of both the financial and social returns.  In light of 
this, it is appropriate for social investment to benefit from specific and 
dedicated scrutiny and decision-taking and it is, therefore, proposed 
that the terms of reference of the Investment Committee be amended to 

Page 388



 

enable a Social Investment Board to be established. This new Board 
will have the power to make decisions in the field of social investment 
and will sit alongside the Financial and Property Investment Boards.   

 
   21. To facilitate this, it is proposed that the Investment Committee’s Terms 

of Reference be amended as follows: 
 

a) To be responsible for the strategic oversight and monitoring of the 
performance of all of the City of London Corporation’s investments, 
in accordance with the investment strategy determined by the Policy 
& Resources Committee. 
 

b) To fulfil (a) above by means of 
i. the appointment of a Property Investment Board and a Financial 

Investment Board, responsible for property and financial 
investments (excluding social investments) respectively; 

ii. the appointment of a Social Investment Board, responsible for 
social investments. 

 

22. The Social Investment Board - Membership  

The Social Investment Board will be appointed annually by the 
Investment Committee. However, in view of the very specialist nature 
of this type of investment activity, it is suggested that the membership 
of the Board should comprise a mix of ex-officio and directly elected 
Members. In this way, the ex-officio Chairmen are able to serve or, 
should they so wish, nominate individual Members of the Court of 
Common Council who may have experience or expertise in this field to 
serve in their stead, the Investment Committee will be represented and 
the Court is able to directly elect two Members to serve. The proposed 
composition is as follows: 
  

a) The Chairman of the Policy & Resources Committee for the time 
being or his/her nominee;  

b) The Chairman of the Finance Committee for the time being or 
his/her nominee; 

c) The Chairman of the City Bridge Trust Committee for the time 
being or his/her nominee; 

d) The Chairman of the Financial Investment Board for the time being 
or his/her nominee;  

e) One Member of the Financial Investment Board;  
f) Two Members elected by the Court of Common Council, one of 

whom shall have fewer than five years’ service on the Court at the 
time of their appointment. 

Page 389



 

  
 All nominees must be Members of the Court of Common Council. 

 
 23. In addition, the Social Investment Board shall have the power to co-opt 

people with relevant expertise or experience, including non-Members of 
the Court in the same way as the other two Boards. 

 
 24. Chairmanship 

The Social Investment Board shall elect annually a Chairman and a 
Deputy Chairman from amongst all of its Members (including ex-officio 
Members who shall also have the power to vote in such elections) with 
the exception of any co-opted people, and Standing Orders will need to 
be amended.  

 

 25.   Terms of Reference 

The terms of reference for the Social Investment Board shall be as 
follows: 
a) to approve criteria for Social Investments and to authorise social 

investments in accordance with such criteria 
b) to approve the appointment of and monitor the performance of 

independent advisors tasked with undertaking due diligence of 
investment proposals  

c) all of the above to be consistent with the strategic investment 
policies determined by the Policy and Resources Committee and the 
Investment Committee. 

 
 26. In the same way as the Financial and Property Boards are able to 

operate, it is proposed that Standing Orders be amended to provide for 
the Chairman of the Social Investment Board to be able to respond and 
speak on their subjects in the Court and to ensure that any decisions are 
taken without undue delay. 

 
27. Meetings 

The Social Investment Board will meet at least three times each calendar 
year. Minutes will be circulated to the Investment Committee. 

 

28. Management  

The Fund will be administered by the Chief Grants Officer for the City    
Bridge Trust. In order to coordinate administration and portfolio 
management, all investment proposals will be channelled through the 
City Bridge Trust. Outline investment criteria will be published on City 
of London and City Bridge Trust’s websites and all prospective 
investees will be required to submit a 2-sided (max) proposal. Outline 

Page 390



 

proposals will then be reviewed at monthly meetings of Officers from 
the City Bridge Trust Section of the Town Clerk’s Department and of 
the Chamberlain’s Department, with the initial sift filtering out 
proposals which are outside approved criteria.  

 
29.   Prospectus 

Proposals which meet recognised criteria will be invited to submit a full 
proposal. A full assessment will examine the underlying business model, 
capital required, projected financial returns on the proposed investment, 
other investment already committed or in pipeline, risks to the investee 
and to the City of London as an investor, and the social outcomes 
sought. An independent FSA regulated agency will usually undertake 
financial assessment. Where possible, Officers will work with co-
investees to share risk and reduce cost.  

 
30. A representative from the Chamberlain’s Department will review the 

independent FSA regulated agency’s assessment.  A City Bridge Trust 
officer will draft a short report on the social impact of the investment. A 
combined report will be provided for the Social Investment Board’s 
decision, together with external assessment and/or prospectus. 

 
31. Monitoring the Investment 
 Following investment, the City Bridge Trust Officers will check that all 

investment criteria have been met by the investee and continue to 
monitor the investment throughout its life, submitting quarterly reports 
to the Social Investment Board. Suitable coding for all investments will 
be established through the GIFTS database, in consultation with the 
Chamberlain’s Department, and payment transactions will be made 
through the Corporation’s CBIS system. 

 
32. Resources 

 The Fund will need an allocation to cover costs of independent 
investment appraisals and to expand the IT system through the GIFTS 
database.  For the remainder of the 2012-13 financial year, these fees 
and other running costs can be met within City Bridge Trust’s local risk 
budget.  In subsequent years, the City Bridge Trust would seek approval 
from the Policy & Resources Committee for an uplift in its local risk 
budget.  

 
33.  Consultation 

 The Town Clerk, Chamberlain, Comptroller & City Solicitor and   
Director of Economic Development have been consulted in the 
preparation of this report. 

Page 391



 

 
 34.  Conclusion 

 This report sets out the various proposals for establishing the criteria and   
governance in respect of the City Corporation’s activities in the field of 
social investment.  If the Committee approves these proposals and 
subject to the concurrence of the Court of Common Council, the Post-
Implementation Review Working Party will be advised of the proposed 
governance arrangements to inform its work. 
 

Background Papers: 

 

20th July 2012 – Investment Committee – “City of London Corporation Social 
Investment Fund – Proposed Management and Governance Arrangements”. 
 
24th May 2012 – Court of Common Council – “Report – Policy & Resources 
Committee: Social Investment Fund” 
 

3rd May 2012 – Policy & Resources Committee – “Proposal for a City of 
London Social Investment Fund”. 

 

 
 

Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3711 
Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 392



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012          

 

Subject: 

City of London Corporation Strategy for City 

Philanthropy 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This report introduces a paper, City of London Corporation 

Strategy for City Philanthropy, that was written by the Chief 

Grants Officer for the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee Awayday 

on 6th July 2012.  It explains why the time is ripe to promote 

philanthropy in the City and the context in which the City of 

London Corporation is operating.  It sets out the mission and vision 

that underpins your City Philanthropy – a Wealth of Opportunity 
initiative and the activities that are currently being undertaken in 

order to deliver this project.  It also sets out proposals for future 

activities to promote philanthropy in the City   

You may recall that you are funding a number of activities as part 

of this strategic initiative, including the new City Philanthropy 
website, launched at Mansion House on 2nd July 2012; the City 

Funding Network, a giving circle targeting younger would-be 

philanthropists which launched on 23rd July 2012; and the new 

category of Beacon Award for City Philanthropy amongst the 
prestigious Beacon Awards for Philanthropy which launched on 10th 

September 2012.  The Beacon Award Ceremony will be held at 
Mansion House in February 2013. 

The paper, City of London Corporation Strategy for City 
Philanthropy, is appended at Appendix A.  

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 

020 7332 3711 

Clare.Thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 11/09/12    

Agenda Item 13

Page 393



Page 394

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

 

CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION STRATEGY FOR CITY PHILANTHROPY 

 

For several reasons, the time is ripe to promote philanthropy in the 

City and to communicate widely the extent and breadth of giving in 

the Square Mile and Canary Wharf. 

 

Context 

 

• The City has a proud tradition of philanthropy dating back to the 

Middle Ages, led by the Livery Companies and the Mayoralty.   

(In 2010 the Livery Companies gave £42 million to good causes). 

 

• The City of London Corporation is trustee of the City Bridge 

Trust, London’s leading grant-making foundation (2011-12 

£18.9 million). 

 

• In 2007, the City of London Corporation funded the Policy 
Exchange’s influential report ‘Give and Let Give’, which 

recommended building a culture of philanthropy within the 
financial services industry, partly through the setting up and 

development of a website for financially literate, high net 

worth individuals. 

 
• Bad PR surrounding the banking crisis, bankers’ bonuses and 

the Occupy campers highlighted the need to shine a light on 
the ‘good’ side of the City. 

 

• In 2011 the Government published a white paper on Giving 

2011; and in 2012 it convened a Summit on Giving.  

Alderman Roger Gifford chaired the well-attended Action 

Group on Philanthropy, which included the Rt Hon Nick Hurd 

MP, Minister for Civil Society. 

 

• The Philanthropy Review of 2011 aimed to build a stronger 

culture of philanthropy, making it easier to give.  It 

highlighted the role that leaders in business could play. 

 

• Alderman Gifford has a strong desire to promote London as a 

global centre for philanthropy and the City has the necessary 

infrastructure, track record, financial skills and a favourable 

tax and regulatory environment.  World class expertise makes 

the City a welcome home for international philanthropists. 

 

• The Quiller Report (December 2011) emphasised the 

importance of communicating the charitable activities of the 

City. 

 

Page 395



 

 

 

• Next Generation Vision (NGV), part of the CityUK, aims to 

create a fundamental improvement in the relationship 

between the financial services industry and the public, 

including values and behaviours. 

 

• It is time to capitalise on the growing interest in philanthropy 

from government and high net worth individuals and in so 

doing help repair the dented reputation of the financial City, 

whilst increasing never more needed charitable resources. 

 

• Much more could be done to profile the ‘charitable’ City 

through the campaign “City Philanthropy – A Wealth of 

Opportunity”, comprising a series of well publicised 

philanthropic initiatives.  City Philanthropy would act as a 

‘giving’ hub.  A list of activities follows: 

 

CITY PHILANTHROPY – A WEALTH OF OPPORTUNITY 

 

Vision 

London as a global centre for philanthropy, with philanthropy 

embedded in the culture of the City. 

 

Mission 

To promote and communicate the range of philanthropy activity in 

the City to a wide domestic and international audience. 
 

Activities 

 

• The Mayoralty to lead on promoting London as a global centre 

for philanthropy. 

 

• The Lord Mayor’s Appeal, a new charity, is being created by 

the five-person Continuum (being the 5 next-in-line potential 

Lord Mayors) to ensure greater efficiency, continuity and 

impact. 

 

• City Philanthropy (an Association of Charitable Foundation’s 

project) will serve as the hub for promoting philanthropy in the 

City (funded by City Bridge Trust).  

 

• City Philanthropy will map and bring together the various 

philanthropic City networks when appropriate and will work 

collaboratively with Heart of the City and EDO adding value 

to, but not duplicating the CSR agenda. 

 

• City Philanthropy’s website www.cityphilanthropy.org.uk, was 

launched at Mansion House on 2 July and is the starting point  

Page 396



 

 

 

 

• for those who want to get involved in giving their time, talent 

or money strategically. 

 

• The City Funding Network was launched on 23 July 2012 as a 

‘giving circle’, comprising younger would-be philanthropists 

(City Bridge Trust funded). Sixty young City professionals in 

one evening raised £27,000. Young philanthropists will be 

supported in recruiting and employing other philanthropists 

and in so doing will grow a more enlightened City community 

which sees a value in supporting other communities.  

 

• City Philanthropy will, in partnership with others, work on 

making payroll giving easier. 

 

• The prestigious Beacon Awards for Philanthropy includes a 

new category, The Beacon Award for City Philanthropy, and 
the Award Ceremony will be held at Mansion House in 

February 2013.  (City Bridge Trust funded). 
 

• It is proposed to hold a high profile annual lecture on 

philanthropy at Mansion House. 

 
• City Bridge Trust will help organise a conference on 

philanthropy, including leading business and third sector 
leaders.  This was an action point from the Giving Summit. 

 

• City Bridge Trust will explore options on a philanthropy 

exhibition in collaboration with the Museum of London and 

Charterhouse. 

 

• City Bridge Trust will consider commissioning a publication on 

City Philanthropy past and present, which will be widely 

promoted. 

 

• In November, a City Bridge Trust representative will speak at 

Gresham College’s Philanthropy Conference, “Past, Present 

and Future”. 

 

All these activities will be supported by a communications strategy 

which will ensure due recognition of the role of the City of London 

Corporation. It fully meets the communications priority, supporting 

London’s communities. 

Page 397



Page 398

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

Reports on Monitoring Visits 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 

At each of your meetings, you receive two sample monitoring visit 

reports. These are in addition to two substantial monitoring 

reports you receive annually.  One of these, a report reflecting on 

issues arising from the monitoring and evaluation of grants was 

presented to your February 2012 meeting, and a statistical 
monitoring report looking at trends in your grant-making was 

presented to your September 2011 meeting. 
 

Reports for this Committee are from visits to organisations funded 
under your programme for Bridging Communities. They describe 

work delivered by quite different charities, the Royal Fusiliers 

Regimental Museum Trust and the Somali Youth Development 

Resource Centre. Two Members of your Committee, Messrs Bird 
and Henderson-Begg attended the Fusiliers monitoring visit. 

 

  
Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Contact: 

Tim Wilson 
Tel:  020 7332 3716 
Email:  tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
Date report written:  10/09/2012 

Agenda Item 14

Page 399



Page 400

This page is intentionally left blank



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Royal Fusiliers Regimental 

Museum Trust 

Grant ref: 

9714 (John Merivale) 

Programme area: 

02.  Bridging 

Communities\b)  Joint work 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

21/01/2010: £25,000 over two years (2 x £12,500) towards a project to promote 

active citizenship and inter-racial understanding in Tower Hamlets, subject to a 

satisfactory updated budget for 2010.  

Visiting Grants Officer: Tim Wilson 

together with Mr Bird and Mr Henderson-

Begg 

 

Date of meeting: 19 March 2012 

 

Met with: Colonel Nigel Easton (City of London Regiment) and Dale Copley (Museum 

Officer) 

 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 

The Royal Fusiliers Regimental Museum (RFGM) exists to preserve the heritage of the 

Royal Fusiliers, and to present it for the education and entertainment of the public.  It 
is based in its historic headquarters, formerly the Officers’ Mess of the City of London 

Regiment, in the Tower of London – but it is not a part of the Historic Royal Palaces.  
The museum conserves and explains the regiment’s history, from its inception in 1685 

up to the present day. 

 

2. The project funded: 
City Bridge Trust funding contributes towards Fusiliers Engage! a project promoting active 
citizenship and inter-racial understanding in Tower Hamlets. 
 
Three specific activities take place each year:  

1. Out of the Darkness – drama based on the Indian Mutiny, engaging 10 – 15 young 
people  

2. Completing the Picture – a history research project among 7-12 local people, resulting 
in contributions to the museum and its website 

3. Speak to Me – a project with 8 – 10 local young people engaging with current and 
former Fusiliers who have served overseas, documenting oral histories and filming 
them for the museum’s records 

 

The most recent monitoring report was received in February 2012 and was rated 

‘good’. The charity’s financial year corresponds to the calendar year, and accounts 

showing the first year of Trust funding are not yet available so it is not possible to 
comment on how City Bridge support has been acknowledged. 
 

3. Work delivered to date: 

Entirely scripted and staged by the participants, Out of the Darkness has been 

delivered twice, with 40 young people (aged 13 – 24) taking part. The first group, 

who were slightly older than the second, enjoyed researching and writing the drama. 

Over 60 parents attended performances at the Tower. Young people were recruited 

from drama groups in Tower Hamlets, Southwark and Greenwich. Only one participant 
had previously visited the Tower, and 38 of the 40 were from black and minority 

ethnic communities. Page 401



 

Completing the Picture has been delivered in partnership with Bethnal Green library. 

Eight local people participated and focused their attention on the Royal Fusiliers 

Jewish Battalions of the Second World War, an aspect of Regimental history which had 

not previously been researched. At the end of the project the group exhibited at the 

library, a venue which receives around 10,000 visitors a month. 

 

Speak to Me is an oral history project and has involved young people who approached 

the Fusiliers Museum seeking work experience. Eight young people took part, and 

they interviewed serving as well as retired Fusiliers who spoke about their experiences 

at the Tower and whilst on active service. The Museum reported that this activity has 

been particularly helpful in recording the personal histories of private soldiers which 

are otherwise rarely captured.    
 

4. Difference made: 

Young people reported that they enjoyed their involvement in Out of the Darkness 

and Speak to Me. The Museum receives over 800,000 visitors each year, but most are 

foreign tourists, so Trust funding has enabled the Museum to embrace community 

outreach work for the first time. With the older volunteers involved in Completing the 
Picture, work has helped to build up the Regimental ‘memory’. 

 
The charity reports that as a result of these activities there is now greater interest 

from volunteers coming to the Museum to help with document care and collection 

management. As a result of the economic crisis, many of these volunteers are highly 

skilled. 
 

5. Concluding comments: 
Having exceeded its output targets for the first year of activities, in 2012 the Museum 

intends to run the programme of activities again. Drama productions will a focus on 

the Regiment’s Jewish Legions, and Completing the Picture will examine the Fusiliers 

and sport. 

 

The Museum is developing a fundraising and development plan for the next ten years 

and is looking to organise its archive, including its oral history records. To this end, 

the Fusiliers are particularly keen to gather histories from soldiers involved in Korea. 

 

It is clear that the charity has used City Bridge Trust funds to do something which it 

would not otherwise have been able to deliver, and to engage a greater number of 
local people in its work. The Fusiliers have shared lessons learned through these 

activities with other Regimental Museums, so Trust support can be seen to have had a 

‘multiplier’ effect. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 402



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Somali Youth Development 

Resource Centre (SYDRC) 

Grant ref: 

9933 (Tim Wilson) 

Programme area: 

02.  Bridging 

Communities\a)  

Leadership initiatives 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

08/07/2010: £73,500 over three years (£24,000; £24,500; £25,000) towards the 

salary and associated running costs of a programme to develop the leadership skills of 

young Somali people and other young people in the LB Camden.  

Visiting Grants Officer: 

John Merivale 

Date of meeting: 

21st February 2012 

Met with: 

Ibrahim Isse, Director; Abdiwahab Ali, Youth Development Worker 
 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 
The Somali Youth Development Resource Centre (SYDRC) was established in 2000 to 

support Somali young people through the provision of advice and information, and to 
encourage their personal development and realise their potential. 
 

Its main activities include an on-going advice service which is enhanced by: occasional 

specialist sessions and workshops on relevant issues; a programme of social and 

leisure activities targeting both young men and young women; outreach work with 
young people at risk of offending or involved in the criminal justice system; work with 

schools to raise educational attainment, coupled with an annual educational 
achievement awards event; and awareness raising  and partnership working through 

agencies such as the Metropolitan Police, the Home office and the Greater London 
Assembly. 
 

2. The project funded: 

This is a three year project to build on and extend SYDRC’s existing work with a 
leadership programme bringing together young Somalis with other young people in 

Camden, to provide them with the skills to become future leaders and ambassadors. 
 

The project was sparked particularly by a high-level conference organised by SYDRC 

in 2008.  Attendees included the then Minister of State for Security, Counter-

Terrorism, Crime and Policing; the Assistant Commissioner of the Metropolitan Police 

and the Deputy Mayor of London.  It was also attended by over 150 young Somali 

people and was an opportunity to identify their needs.  The conference confirmed that 

the young Somali community feels isolated from mainstream society, many have 

experienced racial discrimination, and many disaffected youth are vulnerable to gang 

culture, drugs and radicalism.  At the same time, however, most of them want to be 

active citizens and help to make their neighbourhoods safer. 
 

To enable this to happen, the young people felt it was important to build dialogue 

between themselves and statutory authorities to represent their views.  It was also 

felt they needed role models, and a structure of alternative options to gang culture. 
 

The project works with a cohort of 20 young people each year - approximately two-

third of these being Somali, and the remainder from the wider community.  SYDRC 

already had close links with youth projects based at Kentish town Community Centre, 
Page 403



for example, as well as a local Bangladeshi youth group.  The cohort takes part in a 

comprehensive programme that aims to develop leadership skills and increase 

understanding of each other’s communities.  It encourages them to get involved in 

youth-led, local community action initiatives and to take up volunteering 

opportunities.  As an extra incentive, there is also an award at the end of the year. 
 

The project is being clearly accounted for, and pay details for the Youth Development 

Worker were seen.  Payroll is operated by Voluntary Action Camden. 
 

3. Work delivered to date: 

From an overall target of 60 over the three years, 19 young people have been 

recruited in Year 1 onto the leadership programme – 12 males and 7 females.  To 

date, they have had: 

• Six sessions of peer to peer support 

• One leadership workshop 

• One career jobs fair 

• One CV and interview techniques workshop 
Further, awareness workshops have been held for parents, teachers and siblings on: 

Crime – signs and symptoms of gang or criminal behaviour; Exclusion – how criminal 
behaviour may be linked to low level educational attainment; and Self-esteem and 

Empowerment – dealing with role models, higher education and career advice. 

The organisation is also particularly proud of having held an event to discuss the 
health implications of fasting for Ramadan, and an educational achievement awards 

event; and of having attended a Youth Meeting at 10 Downing Street. 
 

4. Difference made: 

The first year’s report noted positive changes, but would have benefitted from more 

explanation of how the particular activities may have helped to generate these.  On 

the other hand, the feedback from participants is more revealing: some participants 
have clearly articulated the changes in their views of horizons, personal possibilities 

and self-belief: “I am an ex-offender, and …… I now feel brave enough to seek 
employment……” Without this project I would have been prepared to stay in my 

comfort zone, but…”  Critical to these responses have been the process of learning 

from peers, and meeting people from other cultures.  Football too has proven to be a 

vital way to draw in the harder-to-reach males. 

SYDRC has now been working with Nick Price from City University, specifically on 

marketing the organisation and on how to report better – together they have designed 

a new monitoring and evaluation system.  
 

5. Concluding comments: 

SYDRC is a well-run project which prides itself in involving young people in its 

management and development.  Three participants have become trustees – the oldest 

Board member is currently 26, and the policy is to step down at age 30.  Indeed, it 

claims to be the only fully youth-led organisation in Camden. 

The organisation has continuing support from Camden Council, BBC Children in Need, 

and Metropolitan Police. 

It will be interesting to watch whether the support from City University will result in 

clearer demonstration of results, and thus further success with funding. 
 
 
 

Page 404



Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 27th September 2012 

 

Subject: 

City Bridge Trust Business Plan update – quarter 1, 

2012-13 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 
For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 

This report provides members with an update of progress made 

towards achieving the objectives set out in the City Bridge Trust 

business plan for 2012-13 

 

  
Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 

 

Main Report 

 
Background 

In March 2012, you agreed the City Bridge Trust Business Plan for 2012-
13.  This contained eight Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) across seven 

departmental objectives.  This report provides an update on progress 

towards achieving these during the first quarter of 2012-13.  The format 
of the report has been updated from those provided in previous years to 

tailor information more closely to the key performance measurements. 

 

Objective 1 –Grant Making 

KPI – Commit the annual grants budget in full against stated priorities 

Target – 100% spend by year end 

In the period April – June 2012, 53 grants were awarded, totalling 

£3.53m.  This is slightly below your usual pattern of grant-making but is 

no cause for alarm.  During the same period 70 applications were 

rejected, withdrawn or lapsed.  Of these 123 applications, 14 were 

brought to your committee outside of the advertised fourth month 

turnaround.  This was either due to the Grants Unit awaiting further 

information or the difficulty of arranging meetings with applicants, 

especially over the Easter period. 

 

 

Agenda Item 15

Page 405



 

KPI – Undertake the Quinquennial Review within agreed timetable 

Target – Review completed to time for new programmes launch in 

Summer 2013. 

Research papers have been commissioned and staff are undertaking a 

data review of existing programmes.  The staff team awayday was in 

planning for early September.  The overall timetable remains on course. 

 

Objective 2 – Monitoring and evaluation 

KPI – Maintain a high level of satisfaction from grant recipients 

Target - 95% satisfaction rating (ie good/very good) 

On a random sample of recently received monitoring and evaluation 

reports, 83% rated their dealings with the Trust as ‘very good’ and 17% 

as ‘good’ – giving an overall rating of 100%. 

 

The annual programme of monitoring visits is underway.  Visits will be 

spread across the year, so as to meet with organisations at the best time 
within their grant and work cycle. 

 

Objective 3 – Strategic Initiatives 

KPI – to launch Growing Localities and the Wembley National Stadium  
Trust to the agreed timetables 

Target – Growing Localities to launch in May 12, WNST in autumn 12 
The Growing Localities programme was officially launch at an event at 

Guildhall on 17 May, attended by Joanna Lumley and Raymond Blanc, 

both of whom received the Freedom of the City as part of the day’s 

events.  A ‘pop-up garden’ in Guildhall Yard attracted great attention.  
Officers have worked to promote the scheme with relevant groups. 

 
Work also continues to develop programmes and procedures for the new 

Wembley National Stadium Trust.  The work remains on course for an 

autumn launch. 

 

Objective 4 – Learning and Sharing 
KPI - Hosting the 2012 Annual Conference with a high level of positive 

feedback. 

Target – 3.5/4 satisfaction rating 

It has been agreed that in view of the work on the Quinquennial Review 
and the consultation meeting taking place to inform that process – these 

will replace the annual conference this year. 

 

Other learning and sharing work continues apace.  For example, the 

Media Trust has been commissioned to make short films for ten of your 

grant recipient organisations and work has begun on the 2011/12 CBT 

Annual Review. 

 

 

Page 406



Objective 5 – Social Investment and Corporate Philanthropy 

KPI – Host a successful series of round table discussions on social 

investment 

Target – to hold three events 

Two events were held during this quarter.  These were well-received and 

provided an environment to learn and share from professionals in the field 

on this area of work.  The third event was planned for July. 

 

Objective 6 – Communications and Media 

KPI – Publish articles on issues of strategic importance to the Trust in 

relevant media outlets 

Target  - four pieces published in the year 

The Evening Standard published a major piece at the time of the launch 

of your Growing Localities programme.  That occasion received 

widespread media coverage. 

 

Many of your grant awards have also featured in local press outlets 
 

Objective 7 – Performance and corporate management 
KPI – Ensure all staff appraisals completed to time 

Target – 100% 
All CBT staff have had their start-of-year appraisals and learning 

objectives set for the year. 
 

Staff teams continue to meet regularly to review activities and to share 

learning and training experiences. 

 
 

 
 

 
Contact: 

Stewart Goshawk  
Tel:  020 7332 3712 
Email:  stewart.goshawk@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
Date report written:  30/08/2012 

Page 407



Page 408

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 409

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 410

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	Outstanding - Annex

	5 Revenue Outturn 2011/12
	6 Progress Report and Events
	Events Table

	7a Introductory Paper
	7b Grant Recommendations and Assessments
	Grant Summary - Alphabetically - WWL
	WWL - Annexes i
	WWL - Annexes ii

	7c Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Reject - WWL

	7d Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	8a Introductory Paper
	8b Grant Recommendations and Assessments
	GL Annexes

	8c Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Reject - WWL

	8d Withdrawn or Lapsed Applications
	9 Grants approved under delegated authority
	10 Strategic Initiative: Literacy in Islington
	11 Get Young People Working: The Youth Offer
	12 Social Investment Fund Governance and Operating Arrangements
	13 CoL Strategy for City Philanthropy
	Appendix - CoL Strategy for City Philanthropy

	14 Reports on Monitoring Visits
	Fusiliers monitoring visit report
	SYDRC monitoring visit report

	15 Business Plan Quarterly Update
	19 Non-Public Minutes

